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On behalf of the board of directors (“Board”) of Matsunichi
Communication Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased
to present the annual report of the Company together with its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended 31st March, 2007.

RESULTS

For the year ended 31st March, 2007, the Group recorded
turnover amounting to HK$3,071 million (2006: HK$2,314
million), achieving year-on-year growth of approximately 33%.
The improved performance was mainly attributable to a significant
increase in sales volume of the Group during the year, as demand
for digital audio products and related digital consumer electronics
grew steadily across the board and the Group expanded its

markets, both internationally and in the PRC.

As competition became more fierced, the Group lowered the
blended average selling price of its products in response to the
market situation, the Group’s gross profit margin declined from
17% last year to 15% this year. Net profit for the year decreased
by 6% to HK$202 million as compared with HK$215 million
recorded in last year, net profit margin for the period under

review fell slightly to 7% as compared with 9% in last year.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The directors of the Company (“Directors”) are pleased to
recommend a final dividend of HK6.5 cents per share to the
shareholders whose names appear on the register of members
of the Company on 8th August, 2007. Subject to the approval
at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting, dividends will be
sent to shareholders of the Company (“Shareholders”) on or
about 16th October, 2007. Together with interim dividend of
HK7.5 cents per share paid on 16th April, 2007, it makes a total
dividend of HK14 cents per share for the year.

All the issued shares of the Company (but not nil-paid rights
shares) rank pari passu with each other in all respects including
the rights as to voting, dividend and return of capital.
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PROSPECTS

Looking ahead, the Group is optimistic about the outlook for
the 2007-2008 financial year. The global economy is enjoying
steady growth. Consumer confidence is expected to stay growth,
boosting consumption and sales of the Group's products. Despite
heated competition, the Group’s digital products have firmly
established themselves in the marketplace and enjoy growth
momentum. The Matsunichi brand name is widely recognized
among customers around the world for its quality, and the Group
will continue to capitalize on its previous success and strong
track record.

As one of the leading brands of consumers’ digital products, the
Group's future development centers on one of its most popular
products, the digital photo frame. It has taken the market by
storm since debut. Besides the standard 5", 7" and 10" versions,
a 12" version is going to be launched in nearly future. More,
the Group is keeping to upgrade the features of the product in
order to keep up with such competitive electronic market.
Demand for digital photo frames is forecast to remain strong. It
sold more than 10 million pieces globally in 2007, which is ten-
fold of last year. To keep place in such fierce environment, the

Group is pursuing an aggressive pricing strategy.

Strong sales in the North American and China markets have
contributed to the Group’s performance in recent years. The
Group has established a strong footing in those markets. It is
now raising its profile in other areas, such as Russia and South
America. The Group is dedicated to cultivating markets around

the world and increasing its global presence.

And to diversify its business and broaden its income stream, the
Group has made announcement on its plan to invest for the first
time in the property market in China during the year under
review. It acquired two plots of land in the booming city of
Tianjin, with a total site area of over 400,000m? under the total
consideration of RMB2,026 million. The Group has expressed its

intention to purchase more plots if the opportunity arises. The
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Group is currently focusing on the development of large-scale,
mixed-use projects in Tianjin and south China. A good mix of
residential and commercial properties helps to maximize revenue

and ensure a stable, recurring rental income.

Tianjin is one of the booming cities in China. It stands on the
vantage point which is between Beijing and Shanghai. As the
government approved that the Binhai New Area of Tianjin is
part of its development plan of national economic and social
development for the period of 2006-2010, and the trend of the
continuous of its economic growth, the Group believes it is a
city in high potential to being developed. In the view of these
prosperous aspects, the Group has started to invest in the
property project and is well-positioned to capitalize and be a
force to be reckoned with in the mainland property sector.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS
Continued Expansion of Major International Markets
During the year, the Group was most successful in further
expanding its distribution channels worldwide. In December 2006,
the Group’s digital photo frames first launched in the market,
and became available on Amazon.com, one of world’s largest
online stores. In the year, the number of retail shops for selling
digital photo frames with Matsunichi brand was more than 100
globally. That helped to boost the market share of the Matsunichi
brand of digital products and marked a milestone in the Group’s
foray into the global market.

The Group has enjoyed a strong global presence in European,
North and South American, Asian and other emerging markets.
Its outstanding list of digital electronics products is widely popular

and meets the demand of customers worldwide.

Expansion of Market Share and Cost Control

During the year under review, the Group continued to launch a
new range of digital products to boost its market share. Thanks
to the Group’s distribution channels and successful marketing
strategy, its products — especially digital photo frames — achieved
overwhelming response in the North America. Digital photo
frames went on sale for the first time around the second half of

the year.
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Amid a rapid decrease in the price of memory modules, the
Group has actively strived to maintain their average selling price
through a “build-to-order” business model. That helped to better

control inventory levels and manage gross profit margin.

Global Marketing Strategy

During the year, the Group has capitalized on the enormous
exposure generated by the signing of six-time U.S. Olympic gold
medalist Michael Phelps as its global spokesperson. The
association with Phelps has further improved the brand image of
Matsunichi as well as the Group’s ability to negotiate with major
retail chains in both Europe and the U.S. This made it easier for
the Group to introduce its own brand products. Matsunichi is
one of the few Asian brands to enjoy high exposure in those
markets.

During the year under review, the Group attended the
International Consumer Electronics Show (CES) held in the U.S.
It is one of the world’s largest annual trade fairs showcasing the
latest digital electronic and communication products. Through
its participation, the Group was able to successfully raise the
global profile of the Matsunichi brand name, attract new
customers and maintain its relationships with existing ones.

Sponsorship

The Group has raised its corporate profile by sponsoring a number
of popular television programmes in Hong Kong, including “Solid
Gold” on TVB Jade. These sponsorships helped to further promote
the Matsunichi brand and achieve distinctive market positioning.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group's working capital as at 31st March, 2007 amounted
to HK$1,345 million, representing an increase of approximately
54% as compared with last year. During the period under review,
trade receivables generally increased as compared with the
previous year, this proved to be a significant area of improvement
for the Group thanks to the increase in total turnover. Inventories
as at 31st March, 2007 were further lowered by approximately
14% as compared with last year, the Group had successfully
managed the level of inventory on hand since its adoption of
the ‘build-to-order’ strategy.
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Attributable to the overall improved performance during the year,
the Group’s bank balances and cash jumped up from HK$1.30
billion to HK$1.75 billion, representing a surge of 34%. The
current ratio of the Group improved from 1.8 times in the
previous financial year to 1.9 times this year. The increase in
finance costs during the period is consistent with the additional
short-term financing used.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISKS

The Group's monetary assets and liabilities were principally
denominated in Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi and US dollars.
Inasmuch as the Hong Kong dollar is pegged to the US dollar,
and that there has been minimal fluctuation in exchange rate
between Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi, the Group’s exposure
to currency exchange risk was minimal.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY
As at 31st March, 2007, the Group had a total number of
approximately 876 (2006: 500 employees) employees.

The remuneration policy and package of the Group’s employees
are structured by reference to market terms and statutory
requirements as appropriate. In addition, the Group also provides
other staff benefits such as medical insurance, mandatory
provident fund and a share option scheme to its employees.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Particulars of the continent liabilities of the Group are set out in
note 37 to the consolidated financial statements.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my thanks and
recognition towards the Group's management team and
employees. Their dedication and commitment to the Group has
been vital in achieving the successes of the past year. Thanks are
due also to the Group’s highly-valued customers, our business
associates and of course the Shareholders for their loyalty and
support over the period.

By order of the Board

Matsunichi Communication Holdings Limited
Chairman

Pan Su Tong

Hong Kong, 23rd July, 2007
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The Company is committed to the establishment of good
corporate governance practices and procedures with a view to
being a transparent and responsible organization which is open
and accountable to the Shareholders. The Board believes that
good corporate governance provides a framework and platform
that is essential for and advantageous to effective management
and successful business growth.

CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES

The Company has adopted the code provisions of the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices (the “CG Code”) set out in
Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”)
as its code of practice.

Throughout the year ended 31st March, 2007, the Company has
complied with the code provisions of the CG Code except for
the provisions A.2.1 and A.4.1, details of and considered reasons

for which are set out below.

CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

The Company has also adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as the guidelines for
the Directors’ dealings in the securities of the Company.

Upon specific enquiry made by the Company, all Directors

confirmed that they have complied with the required standards
set out in the Model Code for the year ended 31st March, 2007.
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Corporate Governance Report
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises the
following Directors:

Executive Directors
Mr. Pan Su Tong (Chairman & Chief Executive Officer)
Professor Huang Xiaojian

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Lai Chi Kin, Lawrence

Dr. Ng Lai Man, Carmen

Dr. Cheng Kwan Wai, Sunny

The biographical details of each Director are disclosed on pages
16 and 17 of this annual report.

The Board is collectively and ultimately responsible for how the
Company is managed, its strategic direction and performance.
The Board meets to plan, decide and review these matters, which
resolutions are put to a vote. In particular, approval of the Board
is required for adopting the strategy of the Group from time to
time, authorizing the Group’s yearly budget, major acquisitions
and disposals of the Group, major capital investments, dividend
policy and recommendation, appointment and retirement of
Directors and senior management, their remuneration policy and
other major operational and financial matters. Day-to-day
operations of the Group and implementation of the Board’s
decisions and strategy are delegated to the Company’s
management team.
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Corporate Governance Report
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The Board is collectively responsible for preparing the consolidated
financial statements of the Group which were prepared on a
going concern basis. There are no material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Company'’s ability to continue as a going concern. Also, there is
no disagreement between the Board and the Audit Committee
regarding the selection of the auditors.

The Board has also conducted a review of the effectiveness of
the system of internal control of the Group and is satisfied with
the results of the review.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

During the year ended 31st March, 2007, the Board at all times
satisfied the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the
appointment of at least three independent non-executive
Directors (per rule 3.10(1)) with at least one independent non-
executive Director possessing appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management

expertise (per rule 3.10(2)).

Each independent non-executive Director has, pursuant to the
guidelines set out in rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, confirmed
his/her independence and is continued to be considered by the
Company to be independent.
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During the financial year ended 31st March, 2007, the Board
held four regular meetings at approximately quarterly intervals
in addition to the resolutions passed by means of resolutions in
writing of all Directors. Notices of at least 14 days were given
for regular Board meetings to give all Directors the opportunities
to attend. Special Board meetings were held whenever necessary.
Details of individual attendance of each Director are as follows:

THFE=A=T—HLUBFE"
EERBRFEANBRAIRESR
9|\’ $"§ TTOREHE®R FAERLY
R—EAZzE -THEFeeRBELELTNT
RbFM - LEMAEEEEHERELRE -8
EERBETEZEHMNER-SESZER
HEEFEET:

No. of Board meetings
held during the
Director’s term of office

in the financial year No. of Board
REGHRFEESHE meetings
Name of Director BEERERTZ attended Attendance rate
Exns ExaRyg UHEESERH HE=R
Pan Su Tong
B R 7 7 100%
Huang Xiaojian (appointed on 4th September, 2006)
BER (RZEEXNFNAMNAEZE) 5 4 80%
Dong Zhi Qiang (resigned on 31st October, 2006)
TR (RZEFEENFA=Z+—HEHE) 2 0 0%
Lai Chi Kin, Lawrence
HER 7 7 100%
Ng Lai Man, Carmen
REX 7 7 100%
Cheng Kwan Wai, Sunny
£ B 7 6 86%

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Paragraph A.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual for a balance of

power and authority.
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The Company understands this division of responsibilities between
the chairman and chief executive officer. Traditionally, the
chairman provides leadership to the board of directors and
formulate, together with the board, the business strategies and
long-term objectives of the company whilst the chief executive
officer carries out the decisions made by the board of directors
and, with the support of the executive directors, is responsible
for the day-to-day management and operation of the company’s
business.

Currently, Mr. Pan Su Tong is serving both as the Company’s
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer. However, the Board
considers that this situation will not impair the balance of power
and authority between the Board and the management of the
Company. This is because the balance of power and authority is
ensured by the operations of the Board which comprises
experienced and high caliber individuals with demonstrated
integrity. Further, decisions of the Board or collective decisions
made by way of majority voting. The Board believes that this
structure is conductive to strong, prompt response and efficient

management and implementation.

Non-executive directors

Paragraph A.4.1 of the CG Code stipulates that non-executive
directors should be appointed for a specific term, subject to
re-election. The independent non-executive Directors of the
Company are not appointed for a specific term but are subject
to retirement by rotation at least once every three years at the
Company’s annual general meeting in accordance with the
Articles of Association of the Company. The Board believes that
such practice will offer stability at the Board level while at the
same time, independence is safeguarded by the necessary
rotation, retirement and re-election procedures which involves

Shareholders’ approval.

BOARD COMMITTEES

Remuneration of Directors

The Remuneration Committee of the Company is responsible for
formulating and making recommendation to the Board on the
Group's policy and structure of the Directors’ and the senior

management’s remuneration.
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Throughout the year ended 31st March, 2007, the Remuneration
Committee comprised Mr. Pan Su Tong (Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee), Mr. Lai Chi Kin, Lawrence and Dr. Ng

Lai Man, Carmen.

RBEE-_TTLF=A=+—HILEBEFE"
¥z EemEHRLEE (FHEESXR)
REBREMRBEXIB AR

During the financial year ended 31st March, 2007, the REE-ZTELF=A=+T—HILHBFE"
Remuneration Committee held two meetings to review and #ﬁ%é%@ TTMREZE AR RETmE
discuss the remuneration packages of both the executive and TRBIFNTEEZCHFMAR-BEKEZ
independent non-executive Directors. Details of individual EREEERLET:
attendance of each member are as follows:
No. of meetings
held during No. of

the financial year meetings
Name of Remuneration REABBEFEE attended Attendance rate
Committee member EEpgg BT 2EBRH™ HESEBRE HE =
Mr. Pan Su Tong EEELEE 2 2 100%
Mr. Lai Chi Kin, Lawrence ?z?ﬁ?&%i 2 100%
Dr. Ng Lai Man, Carmen REXEL 2 100%
Nomination of Directors REESE

The Company does not have a nomination committee. Instead,
the Board is responsible for selection and appointment of its
members and for nominating appropriate person for election by
the Shareholders at the annual general meeting, either to fill
casual vacancies or as an addition to the existing Directors. The
Board will take into consideration of the expertise possess by
the candidates and the relevance of such expertise to the Group’s
business in selecting and recommending candidates for

directorship.

During the financial year, the Board had met to consider and
nominate Professor Huang Xiaojian as a Director. The individual

attendance at Board meetings has been set out above.

AARWEZIIRBEEG - RZ EECH
ENERTEHRESENELRBEE AEZER
RUERRBF RS LER (LUEMERR Rk
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REBEEL AR
RAVRFE EE2SEHEEERESREE

BHERREF EFG2ERNEFEERNEX
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TEERBRE

Remuneration of Auditors

During the financial year, fees paid/payable to Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu, the auditors of the Company for audit services was
approximately HK$2,100,000 and for non-audit services was
approximately HK$36,000, which include fees for provision of
tax services.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee of the Company comprises the three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Lai Chi Kin,
Lawrence (Chairman of the Audit Committee), Dr. Ng Lai Man,

Carmen and Dr. Cheng Kwan Wai, Sunny.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are in line with
the CG Code. The functions of the Audit Committee include:

1. to make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of the external
auditor, and to approve the remuneration and terms of
engagement of the external auditor, and any questions
of resignation or dismissal of that auditor;

2. to review of financial information of the Group; and

3. to oversee the Group's financial reporting system and

internal control procedures.

During the financial year, the Audit Committee held three
meetings at which the financial results and reports, financial
reporting and compliance procedures, internal control matters
and the re-appointment of the auditors were reviewed and
discussed. The Chief Financial Officer of the Company was present
at each of such meetings to report and explain to and answer
questions from the Audit Committee regarding the financial
reporting procedures and results of and internal control

safeguards implemented by the Company.
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EEERBRSE

Details of individual attendance of each Audit Committee member

are as follows:

BRECZZBEEREZAMNLFEBRIDT:

No. of meetings

held during No. of
the financial year meetings
Name of Audit ERZES RAEABBRFEE attended  Attendance rate
Committee member BREZHER BIT2EBRY HESEIH i E xR
Mr. Lai Chi Kin, Lawrence REBREAE 3 3 100%
Dr. Ng Lai Man, Carmen REXEL 3 100%
Dr. Cheng Kwan Wai, Sunny BE IS+ 2 67%
Internal Controls A B ES 4

The Board is responsible for the Group’s internal control system
and for reviewing its effectiveness. The review should cover the
controls such as financial, operational, compliance and risk
management. During the financial year, the Board had been
assisted by the Audit Committee in reviewing the effectiveness
of the internal control system of the Group. No material
deficiencies have been identified so far. The Audit Committee
and the Board considered the Group's internal control system
was effective and that there was no significant area of concern,
which might affect the interests of the Shareholders.

The Group will use its best endeavor to implement changes to
further improve the Group’s internal control system whenever

necessary.

Communication with Shareholders

The Company has established different communication channels
such as (i) holding of annual and extraordinary general meetings
to provide a forum for Shareholders to communicate directly
with the Board; (i) sending corporate documents and releasing
announcements to disseminate the latest activities of the Group
to the Shareholders; and (iii) via the Company’s website to provide

an electronic means of communication.
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Board of Directors and Senior Management

ESEREREEE

DIRECTORS

Mr. Pan Su Tong, aged 44, is the chairman of the Company
and is responsible for the overall strategic planning of the Group.
Mr. Pan has over 20 years of experience in trading and
manufacturing of electronic products in the PRC, Hong Kong
and the United States. In 1993, he founded the Group which is
principally engaged in the manufacturing, distribution, research
and development of advanced electronic products including thin
film transistors television, video telephone and portable computer

memory devices.

Professor Huang Xiaojian, aged 45, joined the Group as Chief
Engineer in 2001 and is responsible for developing technology
and new products. Professor Huang was appointed as an
executive director of the Company in September 2006. He has
over 20 years of experience in research and development of
electronic and digital technologies. Professor Huang holds a
Master degree of Telecommunications and Electronics from
University of Posts and Telecommunications and is a senior
member of an Electronic Association in China. Before joining the
Group, he was an associate professor of University of Posts and
Telecommunications and had worked in different research

organizations in PRC.

Mr. Lai Chi Kin, Lawrence, aged 71, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company in November
2002. Mr. Lai is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the Australian Society of
Certified Practising Accounts. He has extensive experience in
accounting and auditing sectors. Mr. Lai is also an independent
non-executive director of Imagi International Holdings Limited.
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Board of Directors and Senior Management
EEEREREERE

Dr. Ng Lai Man, Carmen, aged 42, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company in February
2004. Dr. Ng is a practicing certified public accountant in Hong
Kong. She is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants in the United Kingdom. Dr. Ng holds a
Doctor degree of Business Administration and a Master degree
of Professional Accounting from the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University as well as Business Administration from the Chinese

University of Hong Kong.

Dr. Cheng Kwan Wai, Sunny, aged 55, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company in September
2004. Dr. Cheng holds a Doctor of Science degree from the
Massachusetts Institute of Technology, USA and a Master of
Business Administration degree from the University of Western
Ontario, Canada. He has held management positions in many
technology companies. He was in charge of funding technology
companies when he was with the Government of the HKSAR.

Currently, Dr. Cheng is engaged in environmental projects.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Cheng Wing Tsan, aged 45, joined the Group in 2004 and
become the Chief Financial Officer and the Company Secretary
of the Company in February 2006. He is a fellow member of
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
Australian Society of Certified Practicing Accountants. He holds
a Bachelor’s Degree in Financial Administration from the University
of New England in Australia. Mr. Cheng has over 15 years’
experience in financial management and also has experience as
a company secretary. Before joining the Group, Mr. Cheng held

senior management positions in different listed companies.
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Directors’ Report
EEERE

The directors present their annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Group”)
for the year ended 31st March, 2007.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of the principal subsidiaries are set out in note 40 to
the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS
The results of the Group for the year ended 31st March, 2007

are set out in the consolidated income statement on page 30.

An interim dividend of HK7.5 cents per share amounting to
approximately HK$51,519,000 was distributed to shareholders
during the year. The directors now recommend the payment of
a final dividend of HK6.5 cents per share to the shareholders
amounting to HK$51,593,000.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of movements during the year in the share capital of the
Company are set out in note 28 to the consolidated financial

statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements of property, plant and equipment of
the Group during the year are set out in note 13 to the
consolidated financial statements.

FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the

Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 96.
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DIRECTORS
The directors of the Company during the year and up to the

date of this report were:

Executive Directors
Pan Su Tong

Huang Xiaojian (appointed on 4th September, 2006)
Dong Zhi Qiang (resigned on 31st October, 2006)
Independent Non-Executive Directors

Lai Chi Kin, Lawrence

Ng Lai Man, Carmen

Cheng Kwan Wai, Sunny

Professor Huang Xiaojian will retire from office at the forthcoming
annual general meeting pursuant to Article 96 of the Company’s
Articles of Association and, being eligible, will offer himself for

re-election.

Mr. Lai Chi Kin, Lawrence and Dr. Cheng Kwan Wai, Sunny will
retire from office at the forthcoming annual general meeting by
rotation pursuant to Article 105 of the Company’s Articles of
Association and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-

election.

The term of office of each director, including the independent
non-executive directors, is for a period up to his/her retirement
by rotation in accordance with the Company’s Articles of
Association.

Directors’ Report
EEERE
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICES CONTRACTS

None of the directors has a service contract with the Company
or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group
within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

At 31st March, 2007, the interests of the directors and their
associates in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
and its associated corporations, as recorded in the register
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO"), or as otherwise
notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions

by Directors of the Listed Companies, were as follows:

Long position
(a) Ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each of the Company

EEZRBEN

& H B M IR A R AU E R RT L
AT mAEER —FRRMEE CLERHE
B M2 BB AL

EENROKBERS &R

R-BBHE=A=+—B EEREEIH

2ATREAAFEEH RS ([F5
REBEGD]) E3526 BT FE 2 B2 MA
TR E T AR EETEER D2 EE
FHENGARAREABARSHAERAA
2 ARD R E AR A 2 BR 15 T AR BB 15 1 2
mT

A
K a] R E(E0.058 T2 & i

Percentage
Number of of the issued

issued ordinary share capital

shares held of the Company

Name of director Capacity s 81T HARATS BT

ESpnA 514 ZBERER BAZEDL

Mr. Pan Su Tong (“Mr. Pan”) Beneficial owner and 441,868,894 56.09%
mEBEAE ([FERE]) interest through (note 1)
controlled corporation (BHsE1)

BEmEA ANMA
XEAERFE
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND

(b)

Directors’ Report
EEERE

EERNBROEEBEARD 2ER

UNDERLYING SHARES (CONTINUED) (#%&)
Long position (continued) k2 (&)
Share options (b) ERE
Approximate
percentage of
the issued
share capital
Number of Number of of the
share underlying Company
Name of director Capacity options held shares A DT E 1T
EEpR 54 FEBRERE MHEBEROCEE REASNEIH
Professor Huang Xiaojian Beneficial owner 400,000 400,000 0.05%
BERHK BHEEBA
Bt &t -

Notes:

2,446,000 shares were held by Mr. Pan and 439,422,894 shares
were held by Jade Forest Limited (“Jade Forest”). Jade Forest
was 100% owned by Mr. Pan as at 31st March, 2007.
Accordingly, Mr. Pan was deemed to be interested in the
439,422,894 shares held by Jade Forest.

As at 31st March, 2007, the number of issued shares of the
Company was 787,824,683.

Save disclosed herein:

None of the directors or their spouses or children under
the age of 18 had any right to subscribe for the securities
of the Company, or had exercised any such right during
the year.

At no time during the year was the Company or any of
its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the
directors of the company to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in, or debt securities (including
debentures) of, the Company or any other body corporate.

Save as disclosed above, at 31st March, 2007, none of the
directors nor their associates had any interests or short positions
in any shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company
or any of its associated corporations.

7% % 4 K Jade Forest Limited ([Jade
Forest] ) # 5l % A 2,446,000/ &
439,422,894 R - M _TEZTLF=A=+
— B Jade Foresti /& £ A A 100%#E 4
At & 3R B A B Jade Foresti A
2439,422,894/% i 1n 2 #E %% o

RZEBEELF=ZA=1+—H ARFBETT
R 1D 8 B 4787,824,6830% °
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY
The Company’s reserves available for distribution to shareholders
as at 31st March, 2007 represented the retained profits of HK$
124,656,000 (2006: HK$60,056,000).

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No contract of significance to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the Company
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

SHARE OPTIONS

Pursuant to the share option scheme (the “Scheme”) adopted
on 27th August, 2002 by a resolution passed by the Company’s
shareholders on the same date, the directors of the Company
may grant options as incentives to any participants as described
in the Scheme for the shares in the Company within a period of

ten years commencing from 27th August, 2002.

Details of the Scheme are set out in note 29 to the consolidated

financial statements.
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SHARE OPTIONS (CONTINUED)

The following tables disclose details of the Company’s share

options and movements in such holding during the year:

Directors’ Report
EEERE

i e g ()
FREBFARAAMRE L SHEREHEE
B2

(i) Directors (i) )
Number of share options
BEREHE
Subscription Outstanding Reclassification Granted Lapsed Exercised  Outstanding
price Exercisable as at during during during during as at
Name of grantee Date of grant ~ per share period 1.4.2006 the year the year the year the year 31.3.2007
RZEEAE it 3343
A-H &R =h=t-H
RRALE RUBE BRIRE fiRs WEGR BN ERRE BN ERAR GESIEA
HKS
AT
Lot 1A Huang Xiaojian 5.2.2004 130 5.2.2005 - 150,000 - - - 150,000
E1nd (Note 1) 10422014
EZE (M)
Dong Zhi Qiang 5.2.2004 130 5.2.2005 150,000 - N (150,000) = -
(Note 2) 104.2.2014
g% (i)
Lot 1B Huang Xiaojian 5.2.2004 130 5.2.2006 - 150,000 - - - 150,000
F183 (Note 1) 104.2.2014
EZE (1)
Dong Zhi Qiang 5.2.2004 130 5.2.2006 150,000 - - (150,000) - -
(Note 2) 104.2.2014
3 (W)
Lot 2 Huang Xiaojian 20.4.2004 1.54 20.4.2004 B 100,000 - - - 100,000
it (Note 1) 10 19.4.2014
EZE (W)
Dong Zhi Qiang 20.4.2004 1.54 20.4.2004 500,000 - - (500,000) - -
(Note 2) 10 19.4.2014
g% ()
Lot 3 Dong Zhi Qiang 28.9.2005 143 28.9.2005 1,500,000 - - (1,500,000 - -
#3i (Note 2) 1027.9.2015
F# (i
2,300,000 400,000 - (2,300,000) = 400,000
Notes: oz
1 Professor Huang Xiaojian was appointed as a director of " HERABA—TEAFNARAERRE
' 9 1l o ARARES-

the Company with effect from 4th September, 2006.

Mr. Dong Zhi Qiang resigned as a director of the
Company with effect from 31st October, 2006.

Details of options granted to the directors of the Company
have been disclosed under the paragraph headed
“Directors’ interests in shares and underlying shares”.

2. EXRAEE _TTERFTA=T—HRE
EARBEE-

BRARTARAESZEREZHBER(E
ERBM RARERD 2] —BRIE-
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EEERE
SHARE OPTIONS (CONTINUED) BRE (&)
(i)  Employees (other than directors) (i) 1EB (EZEBRM)
Number of share options
EREHE
Subscription Outstanding Reclassification Granted Lapsed Exercised  Outstanding
price Exercisable as at during during during during as at
Date of grant per share period 1.4.2006 the year the year the year the year 31.3.2007
RZBERE RZBELE
mA-H Eh ZA=t+-H
RAEAE  SRARE [l HRTE ENAE ERRH ERER ERfR HAGE
HKS$
BT
Lot 1A 5.2.2004 1.30 5.2.2005 1,275,000 (150,000) - (625,000) - 500,000
1A% 104.2.2014
Lot 1B 5.2.2004 1.30 5.2.2006 1,325,000 (150,000) - (625,000) - 550,000
Z18% 104.2.2014
Lot 2 20.4.2004 1.54 20.4.2004 6,400,000 (100,000) - (2,250,000) (200,000) 3,850,000
£ 10 19.4.2014
Lot 3 28.9.2005 143 28.9.2005 7,800,000 - - (350,000) (200,000) 7,250,000
34 10 27.9.2015
16,800,000 (400,000) - (3,850,000) (400,000) 12,150,000
Note: One of the employees was appointed as director during Wit: BE—2EERFRNEZEAES-
the year.
(iii)  Other participants (i) HttzmEE
Number of share options
BREHE
Subscription Outstanding Granted Lapsed Exercised Outstanding
price as at during during during as at
Date of grant per share Exercisable period 1.4.2006 the year the year the year  31.3.2007
RZ2BXRE RZBBL%F
mA-H =R=1+-H
RLRH SRIBE ki R FEREY FRERHU FRfTHE CESi;d
HKS
B
Lot 1A 5.2.2004 1.30 5.2.2005 5,400,000 N N - 5,400,000
18 t04.2.2014
Lot 1B 5.2.2004 1.30 5.2.2006 6,150,000 N N - 6,150,000
Z1pit t04.2.2014
Lot 2 20.4.2004 1.54 20.4.2004 15,650,000 - = (500,000 15,150,000
£t to 19.4.2014
27,200,000 - N (500,000) 26,700,000

The weighted average closing prices of the Company’s RATRHD R E R ZBEIRRETE B HI a2 s
shares immediately preceding the dates of exercise the EHWKTFEEA333ETe
options was HK$3.33.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31st March, 2007, the persons or corporations, other than
a Director or chief executive of the Company, who had interests
or short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company as recorded in the register required to be kept under

Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Directors’ Report
EEERE

FERR

R-ZEZLFE=A=+—H ATALHQA
(FTEREFAARRBITHAER) RARFK
AR P A ERENERES NE
GPIE36HEMFEZ ERM o ERNER

Long position in shares of the Company KATRHBZRE
Approximate
percentage of
Number of the Company’s
Name Capacity ordinary shares held issued share capital
EARRAE BT
=L &4 EEBEREAE RABNBED L
Jade Forest Limited (Note 1) Beneficial owner 439,422,894 55.78%
Jade Forest Limited (H77%1) EmEA A
Atlantis Investment Management Ltd. Investment manager 105,548,000 13.40%
Atlantis Investment Management Ltd. REKIE
Baring Asset Management Limited Investment manager 62,028,000 7.87%
(Note 2)
Baring Asset Management Limited REKIE
(Ktit2)
Northern Trust Fiduciary Services Trustee 62,028,000 7.87%
(Ireland) Limited (“Northern Trust”)
Northern Trust Fiduciary Services XFEA
(Ireland) Limited ( [ Northern Trust])
Notes: W
1. Jade Forest was 100% owned by Mr. Pan. 1. Jade Forestf )& £ A 100% % A °
2. According to a disclosure of interest notice filed by Baring Asset 2. 1B #& Baring Asset Management Limited i =

Management Limited on 17th January, 2007, it was deemed to
be interested in the 62,028,000 shares held by Northern Trust

as an investment manager.

Save as disclosed above, there was no person or corporation,
other than a Director or chief executive of the Company, who
had an interest or share position in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company as recorded in the register of the
Company required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO at
31st March, 2007.

TE+F-—RAt+EtHAGERZERERETAN
HEW S AN EKE S 5 % B Northern
TrustFT#62,028,000% 2

BREXAEEEN EECMALHAR (T
BREFHIARATRAE) R _TTLF=
A=+ —B&EARAEROIBEROTHEED
RSN IRIRE 7 R RGP E336RMFEZ
Brftc@mskage
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INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his/her
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the
Listing Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
The Company considers that all of its independent non-executive

Directors are independent.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up
by the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit,
qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are decided by the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Group's operating
results, individual performance and comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted share option scheme as an incentive
to directors and eligible employees, details of the scheme are
set out in note 29 to the consolidated financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31st March, 2007, the aggregate amount of
turnover attributable to the Group’s five largest customers
represented approximately 70% of the Group’s total turnover
for the year. The aggregate amount of turnover attributable to

the Group’s largest customer for the year was 18%.

For the year ended 31st March, 2007, the aggregate amount of
purchase attributable to the Group’s five largest suppliers
represented approximately 96% of the Group’s total purchase
for the year. The aggregate amount of purchases attributable to

the Group’s largest supplier for the year was 94%.

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholder, which
to the knowledge of the directors, owns more than 5% of the
Company's share capital, has interests in these customers or
suppliers during the year.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during
the year.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT
Based on the notices submitted to the Company pursuant to the
SFO, the Directors are of the view that the Company has

maintained a sufficient public float as at the date of this report.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS
No contracts for management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of any business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Please see the “Corporate Governance Report” set out on pages
8 to 15 of this annual report of the Company for details of its

compliance with the Code on Corporate Governance Practices.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has reviewed with management and the
external auditors the accounting principles and practices adopted
by the Group and discussed auditing and financial reporting
matters including the review of the audited financial statements
of the Group for the year ended 31st March, 2007.

AUDITOR
A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche

Tohmatsu as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Matsunichi Communication Holdings Limited
Pan Su Tong

DIRECTOR

Hong Kong, 23rd July, 2007
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BYZHA RS

Deloitte.
=)

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF MATSUNICHI COMMUNICATION
HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Matsunichi Communication Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set
out on pages 30 to 95, which comprise the Group’s and the
Company’s balance sheets as at 31st March, 2007, and the
Group’s consolidated income statement, consolidated statement
of changes in equity and consolidated cash flow statement for
the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting

policies and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This
responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining
internal controls relevant to the preparation and the true and
fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies;
and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the

circumstances.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 141 of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose.

We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B2 HA RS

any other person for the contents of this report. We conducted
our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
as to whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditor considers internal controls relevant to the Group's
preparation and true and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of its internal controls.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient

and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31st March, 2007 and of the Group’'s profit and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

23rd July, 2007

ATBRESAELRE T - AL RES
AR A RN BB ENETER
BEERNBRANZBANETEERE A ARE
ERTER NAEREZSERAVBHRERE
B AR FAEAE AR -

B RRITRF ARRE BEGRA M HRERA
HeBRMBBEEAHNERRE - MEENEF
EUR A 2 S56M 1) ) - 8 35 51 5 f IO BRAF iR
RMEBBR A BREFEEAERRANE
e R A ERRE ZHEE SR KE
mEREEM AU HER S M BRI
NERES ARFHEENEZEF BXES
HEHNORNEEFOREZERER -BRIERE
AHEESFMAERANSERNG EERAEL
Mg AT A BN AR ELRE M BHRE
M EE RS S T e

RIZBEVRE A BTN R IZERRE T
RMEE R ZBMNEZE IR AR

=R
AZHERRLGAMBRREERA TR
B ERAK BEEER-_TTLF=A=1*
—BZBMBEMARE BEREHEZALFEZ
EMERERE YERBEBMBRE LR
REBRAMGHZERE-

EEBERS AT
HE BT

Bl
—ETEFEA-t=H

2007 % #



Matsunichi Communication Holdings Limited

Consolidated Income Statement
BElRER
For the year ended 31st March, 2007 HE-TZT+HF=A=+—HILFE

2007 2006

—EELEF —EERFE

NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000

B 5 FHET F& T

Turnover X 5 3,070,579 2,313,706

Cost of sales Fiz =N (2,622,820) (1,921,052)

Gross profit EH 447,759 392,654

Other income H A 6 12,156 11,614

Selling and distribution costs $HE R 7 sHA A (36,062) (44,284)

Administrative expenses THER (129,882) (100,640)

Finance costs g5 E A 8 (81,029) (39,638)

Profit before taxation B 4 Al v A 9 212,942 219,706

Taxation I8 10 (10,765) (4,654)

Profit for the year AN [E i A 202,177 215,052

Dividends f% B 11 78,996 92,503
Earnings per share FRkaF 12

- basic — &K 28.57 centsfli  31.73 centsfll

— diluted -3 28.07 centsfli  31.35 centsfll
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

AN
=

BEERBR

At 31st March, 2007 RZ=ZTtF=A=+—H

2007 2006
—EBLE —TTREF
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
B FTER FHBIT
Non-current assets FERBDEE
Property, plant and equipment LIERY E YN 13 221,140 229,735
Trade marks 1R 14 224,190 236,820
Prepaid lease payments TE S 1H & R IE 16 5,936 5,670
Other assets HiEE 17 90 90
451,356 472,315
Current assets MEEE
Inventories & 18 59,084 68,982
Trade and other receivables JFE LAt B 3 e EL A B W SR IB 19 980,794 628,396
Amounts due from related companies JE U5 B8 :E A Rl SR IE 20 2,973 2,133
Prepaid lease payments B & 08 16 135 126
Pledged bank deposits IR ITER 21 799 4,236
Bank balances and cash RITEFIRE 22 1,751,274 1,304,535
2,795,059 2,008,408
Current liabilities mEBE
Trade and other payables JE 11 BR 3R I L A FE A 5K 7B 23 230,677 207,388
Amount due to ultimate holding J& 7 S 42 P R X R RIA
company 24 880 9,085
Amount due to a related company JE 1~ — 8 B 2 2 B ;R 25 11,700 12,091
Taxation payable JE & 18 13,951 14,673
Bank borrowings — amount due RITE N
within one year ——FREHFE 26 1,193,033 891,356
Obligations under finance leases BEBNES
— amount due within one year — —FANEHBFHIE 27 158 252
1,450,399 1,134,845
Net current assets mMEEEFE 1,344,660 873,563
Total assets less current liabilities REERTHEE 1,796,016 1,345,878
Non-current liability FERBEE
Obligations under finance leases BMEMRYES
— amount due after one year — —F & E A FRIE 27 274 431
Net assets BERE 1,795,742 1,345,447
2007 & ]
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Matsunichi Communication Holdings Limited

Consolidated Balance Sheet
HEeEEBEX

At 31st March, 2007 R-ZZE+E=HA=+—H

2007 2006
—EBLE —TIERE
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt FTER FHIT

Capital and reserves N
Share capital [N 28 39,391 34,346
Reserves & 1,756,351 1,311,101
Total equity T B 1,795,742 1,345,447

The consolidated financial statements on pages 30 to 95 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on
23rd July, 2007 and are signed on its behalf by:

Pan Su Tong
EEE
DIRECTOR
EF
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Balance Sheet
BEAEBR

At 31st March, 2007 RZ=ZTtF=A=+—H

2007 2006
—EELE —ZTF
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 FHERT F& T
Non-current assets EREBEE
Investment in subsidiaries B AR E 15 236,085 241,188
Other assets HihEE 17 90 90
236,175 241,278
Current assets MBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE W B /B8 A &) SR IE 22 1,419,526 1,047,203
Bank balances and cash ﬁEﬂmuﬁ&fﬁﬁ 22 4,496 776
1,424,022 1,047,979
Current liabilities mEEE
Other payables H fth & 5k 1B 52,815 9,824
Amount due to ultimate holding J& 7 S 42 AR X R FRIA
company 24 330 7,700
Amount due to a subsidiary FEAT —FEI BB A B FIE 22 30,000 30,000
Amount due to a related company JE 1~ — B & 2 Rl 5K IE 25 11,700 11,700
94,845 59,224
Net current assets REEEFE 1,329,177 988,755
Net assets BEFE 1,565,352 1,230,033
Capital and reserves & 7R K fe 1
Share capital [N 28 39,391 34,346
Reserves & 30 1,525,961 1,195,687
Total equity W= B8 1,565,352 1,230,033
Pan Su Tong Huang Xiaojian
EEE BHEE
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
- -
2007 F #&
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Matsunichi Communication Holdings Limited

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31st March, 2007 #HZZZZtF=A=+—HILFE

Share-based Capital PRC
Share Share compensation  Translation  redemption Capital  statutory Retained
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserves profits Total
Kt kA B

Kx  RfEE  HeRFE  RERFE  EERE  RARE  iERE  REEA @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL THL AL THL AL TAL AL TAL THL
(note 30) (note 30)
(K330 (A13£30)

Balance at 1st April, 2005 RZZ51E
MA-A&H# 33,454 1,095,201 6,456 (600) - 3,605 33,689 16,817 1,188,622
Exchange differences arisingon WA E ZER
translation of foreign operations ~ R E I £%

recognised directly in equity EEVEHER - - - 3,215 - - - - 3215
Profit for the year ERgd - - - - - - - 215,052 215,052
Total recognised income and EREERMAR

expense for the year RYBE - - - 3,215 - - - 215,052 218,267
Issue of new shares (note 28) & {TIR(A (Hi3H28) 750 21,300 - - - - - - 22,050
Recognition of equity settled BRARKEE 2

share-based payments BEES PAE - - 5,192 - - - - - 5,192
Exercise of share options TRERE 315 9,447 (252) - - 9,510
Lapse of share options EREXR - - (1,886) - 1,886 -
Shares repurchased and cancelled B E R HR (173) - - - 173 - - (5,691) (5,691)
Appropriations i - - - - - - 51,298 (51,298) -
Final dividend for 2005 ZERRFIAIRE - - - - - - - (10,078) (10,078)
Interim and special dividends ZEEAEZRER

for 2006 KHIRE = = = = - - - (82,425) (82,425)
Balance at 315t March, 2006 RZZEAE

ZA=t-RER 34,346 1,125,948 9,510 2,615 173 3,605 84,987 84,263 1,345,447
Exchange differences arising on -~ REAE R B

translation of foreign operations ~ REE I £5

recognised directly in equity EECERER - - - 54,986 - - - - 54,986
Profit for the year ERET = - - - - - - 200,177 202177
Total recognised income and EREERUAR

expense for the year AXi4E - - - 54,986 - - - 202,177 257,163
Issue of new shares (note 28) BHR (H52) 5,000 270,000 - - - - - = 275,000
Expenses incurred in connection Bt EfTR (3|5

with issue of shares & i - (4,235) - - - - - - (4,235)
Exercise of share options ffpERE 45 1,388 (70) = - = - = 1363
Lapse of share options BREXK - - (1,409) - - - - 1,409 -
Appropriations A - - - - - - 22,633 (22,633) -
Final dividend for 2006 ZEEREIRERE - - - - - - - (27.477) (27,477)
Interim dividend for 2007 ZEREEZRARE - - - - - - - (51,519) (51,519)
Balance at 315t March, 2007 RIZStE

SA=T-RER 39,391 1,393,101 8,031 57,601 173 3,605 107,620 186,220 1,795,742
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
GEEHERER
For the year ended 31st March, 2007 #HEZZTLF=-A=+—HILFE

2007 2006
—EBLE —TTREF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT F&T
Operating activities B T
Profit before taxation B 3t Bl & A 212,942 219,706
Adjustments for: fEH T 51 T %
Interest income A2 WA (10,859) (4,399)
Finance costs BisE R 81,029 39,638
Allowance (reversal of allowance) for bad RIEREE (BEEE)
and doubtful debts 11,701 (8,228)
(Reversal of) allowance for inventories FE (BE) #E (5,217) 191
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments B9 10 & FRIE # 4 135 126
Amortisation of trade marks (EREE:EE] 12,630 11,960
Depreciation of property, plant and ME HERRBTE
equipment 30,487 28,358
Gain on disposal of machinery held for sale SR EFEHEE 2 s - (2,878)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and PEME MR RZHEL
equipment &8 58 2
Share option expenses 8 IR R A 2 - 5,192
Operating cash flows before movements in Ret2EE#HA oK%
working capital RERE 332,906 289,668
Decrease in inventories FERD 15,115 117,924
(Increase) decrease in trade and other receivables & U BF 2k & E b JiE Uk 50 18
(1 0) & (345,007) 39,256
Increase in amounts due from related companies JiE s [ 38 A B) ZRIA L 0 (840) (2,133)
Decrease in trade and other payables JE 1~ BR 5% 2 B i FE 5 5K I8
A (41,955) (109,155)
Cash (used in) generated from operations KEZEEES (RE) RA (39,781) 335,560
Taxation paid BT (11,719) (10,200)
Net cash (used in) generated from operations KEEBRS ORE) MAFRE (51,500) 325,360
Investing activities BERY
Interest received 24 B 10,859 4,399
Proceeds from disposal of machinery held HEFEFERRMERE
for sale (note) (P 5E) - 27,000
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BAME HBEREE (6,345) (7,656)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant HEME WERZEMSE
and equipment RIE 75 601
Decrease (increase) in pledged bank deposits EEBRITEZR D (3G 0) 3,646 (806)
Net cash from investing activities KEEERE R AFE 8,235 23,538
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Matsunichi Communication Holdings Limited

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

GEHERER

For the year ended 31st March, 2007 #HZZZZtF=A=+—HILFE

2007 2006
BBt —FTITF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FHIT
Financing activities BMERD
Interest and finance charges paid ENFEETEER (69,564) (39,638)
Proceeds from issue of new shares B Mm TS RIAE 276,363 9,510
Payment for shares repurchased and cancelled whPTEE @ R SE AR D 2 K - (5,691)
Expenses incurred in connection with issue BAETRMHMSI TRz
of shares (4,235) -
New bank loans raised EEMHMRITER 662,917 =
Net cash (outflow) inflow of trust receipt loans SHEREERR €
() A FE (119,577) 591,038
Repayment of bank loans ERIRITER (301,766) =
Repayment of obligations under finance leases REMERNEZER (251) (26,049)
(Decrease) increase in amount due to ultimate JE A S 4RI R A R 5B
holding company ORt4>) 1 A (8,205) 6,297
(Decrease) increase in amount due to FEfS — B8 E A R 5B
a related company CRL ) 180 (391) 391
Dividends paid BN E (36,038) (92,503)
Net cash from financing activities RMEEHEERAFE 399,253 443,355
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents RekReFEM 2 EMFHE 355,988 792,253
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning FNz2RekAEEEY
of the year 1,303,571 511,318
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes INESER BB 2 5 91,715 =
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year ER R4 BB EEY 1,751,274 1,303,571
Analysis of balances of cash and cash equivalents H& MR ESEEBW 2 ETF T
Bank balances and cash RITEFERE S 1,751,274 1,304,535
Bank overdrafts RITEX - (964)
1,751,274 1,303,571
Note: it
During the year ended 31st March, 2005, the Group entered into a sale BE_ZTHF=-A=+—HUEFE XEEHHEZFE
and purchase agreement with a third party to dispose of the machinery =HEIM B E W R E 427,000,000 7T i &S5
held for sale for a consideration of approximately HK$27,000,000, which EFEK:E REENR_ZEZRAF A TEHEZH
was settled on 17th June, 2005 in full. BlE-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FERBREWT

For the year ended 31st March, 2007 #HZZZZTtF=A=+—HILFE

GENERAL

The Company is incorporated in Hong Kong with limited
liability and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The
immediate and ultimate holding company of the Company
is Jade Forest Limited (“Jade Forest”), a limited liability
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands. The
addresses of the registered office and principal place of
business of the Company are disclosed in the corporate

information included in the annual report.

The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is different from the functional currency of
the Company, Renminbi (“RMB"”) as the Company is a
public company incorporated in Hong Kong with the
shares listed on the Stock Exchange, where most of its
investors are located in Hong Kong and therefore, the
directors consider that Hong Kong dollars is preferable in
presenting the operating result and financial position of
the Company and the Group. The majority of the
Company’s subsidiaries are operating in the People’s
Republic of China (“PRC") with RMB as their functional
currency.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
activities of its principal subsidiaries at 31st March, 2007
are set out in note 40.

# 8l
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Matsunichi Communication Holdings Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GERBREM T

For the year ended 31st March, 2007 #HZZZZtF=A=+—HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first
time, a number of new standards, amendments and
interpretations (“new HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"),
which are effective for accounting periods beginning on
or after 1st December, 2005, 1st January, 2006 or 1st
March, 2006. The adoption of the new HKFRSs had no
material effect on how the results and financial position
for the current or prior accounting periods have been
prepared and presented. Accordingly, no prior period
adjustment has been required.

The Group has not early applied the following new
standards, amendment or interpretations that have been
issued but are not yet effective. The directors of the
Company anticipate that the application of these
standards, amendment or interpretations will have no
material impact on the results and the financial position
of the Group.

2.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FERBREWT

For the year ended 31st March, 2007 #HZZZZTtF=A=+—HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (CONTINUED)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January,
2007

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January,
2009

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st May,
2006

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st June,
2006

> Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st
November, 2006

6 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st March,
2007

7 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January,
2008

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis and in accordance with the
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by
HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial statements
include applicable disclosures required by Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange and by
the Companies Ordinance.

Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries

made up to 31st March each year.

All significant intercompany transactions and balances
within the Group have been eliminated on consolidation.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated income
statement from the effective date of acquisition or up to

the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.
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Matsunichi Communication Holdings Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
REEHmE N

For the year ended 31st March, 2007 #HZZZZtF=A=+—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Trade marks

Trade marks are measured initially at cost less accumulated
amortisation and any recognised impairment losses. The
cost of trade marks is amortised on a straight-line basis
over their estimated useful lives.

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated

impairment losses.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment over their estimated useful
lives after taking into account their estimated residual
values, using the straight-line method.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over
their expected useful lives on the same basis as owned
assets or, where shorter, the term of the relevant lease.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the item) is included
in the consolidated income statement in the year in which

the item is derecognised.

Investments in subsidiaries
Investments in subsidiaries are included in the Company’s

balance sheet at cost less any identified impairment losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FERBREWT

For the year ended 31st March, 2007 #HZZZZTtF=A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Club debentures

Club debentures with indefinite useful lives are carried at
cost less any subsequent accumulated impairment losses.
Club debentures are tested for impairment annually by
comparing their carrying amounts with their recoverable
amounts, irrespective of whether there is any indication
that they may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of
an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount,
the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised as
an expense immediately.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the club debentures is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so
that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior

years.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of club
debentures are measured at the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and are recognised in the income statement when
the asset is derecognised.

Borrowing costs
All borrowing costs are recognised as and included in
finance costs in the consolidated income statement in

the period when they are incurred.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2007 #HZZZZtF=A=+—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on
the balance sheet when a Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets
and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition
of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit
or loss.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. At each balance sheet date
subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables
including trade receivables, amounts due from related
companies, amounts due from subsidiaries, pledged bank
deposits and bank balances are carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest method. Appropriate
allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts are
recognised in profit or loss when there is objective
evidence that the asset is impaired. The allowance
recognised is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows discounted at the effective interest rate

computed at initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FERBREWT

For the year ended 31st March, 2007 #HZZZZTtF=A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the
Group are classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions
of a financial liability and an equity instrument. An equity
instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the group after deducting all of
its liabilities. The accounting policies adopted for specific
financial liabilities and equity instruments are set out
below.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including trade payables, amount due
to ultimate holding company, amount due to a subsidiary
and amount due to a related company and bank
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires
the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails
to make payment when due in accordance with the
original or modified terms of a debt instrument. A financial
guarantee contract issued by the Group and not
designated as at fair value through profit or loss is
recognised initially at its fair value less transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the issue of the financial
guarantee contract. Subsequent to initial recognition, the
Group measures the financial guarantee contract at the
higher of (i) the amount determined in accordance with
HKAS 37 “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets”, and (ii) the amount initially recognised
less, when appropriate, cumulative amortisation
recognised in accordance with HKAS 18 “Revenue”.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded
at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2007 #HZZZZtF=A=+—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the assets expire or, the financial
assets are transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and
control of the financial assets. On derecognition of a
financial asset, the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the sum of the consideration received is

recognised in profit or loss.

For financial liabilities, they are removed from the Group's
consolidated balance sheet (i.e. when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled
or expires). The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration

paid or payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its assets to determine whether there
is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If the recoverable amount is estimated
to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An

impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as

income immediately.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FERBREWT

For the year ended 31st March, 2007 #HZZZZTtF=A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is calculated using the weighted
average method. Net realisable value is determined as
the estimated selling price less all further costs of
production and the related costs of marketing, selling
and distribution.

Research and development expenditures
Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an

expense in the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from
development expenditure is recognised only if it is
anticipated that the development costs incurred on a
clearly-defined project will be recovered through future
commercial activity. The resultant asset is amortised on a
straight-line basis over its useful life, and carried at cost
less subsequent accumulated amortisation and any

accumulated impairment losses.

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated
intangible asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred
from the date when the intangible asset first meets the
recognition criteria. Where no internally-generated
intangible asset can be recognised, development
expenditure is charged to profit or loss in the period in

which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated
intangible asset is reported at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, on the
same basis as intangible assets acquired separately.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2007 #HZZZZtF=A=+—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the leases transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. Assets held under finance
leases are recognised as assets of the Group at their fair
value at the inception of the lease or, if lower, at the
present value of the minimum lease payments. The
corresponding liability to the lessor, net of interest
charges, is included in the balance sheet as a finance
lease obligation. Lease payments are apportioned between
finance charges and reduction of the lease obligation so
as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liability. Finance charges are charged

directly to profit or loss.

All other leases are classified as operating leases and the
rentals payable are charged to income statement on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Benefits received and receivable as an incentive to enter
into an operating lease are recognised as a reduction of
rental expense over the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently

payable and deferred taxation.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the period. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported
in the income statement because it excludes items of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
periods and it further excludes items that are never taxable
or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or

substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FERBREWT

For the year ended 31st March, 2007 #HZZZZTtF=A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred taxation is recognised on differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
financial statements and the corresponding tax base used
in the computation of taxable profit, and is accounted
for using the balance sheet liability method. Deferred
taxation liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, and deferred taxation assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable

profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred taxation liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Company is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred taxation assets is
reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered.

Deferred taxation is calculated at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period when the liability is settled
or the asset is realised. Deferred taxation is charged or
credited to the income statement, except when it relates
to items charged or credited directly to equity, in which

case the deferred taxation is also dealt with in equity.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2007 #HZZZZtF=A=+—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amount receivable
for goods and services provided in the normal course of
business, net of discounts and sales related taxes.

Sales of goods are recognised when goods are delivered

and title has passed.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when
the shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been
established.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a
time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and
at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate
that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial asset to that
asset’s net carrying amount.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recorded in its functional currency (i.e. the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the
dates of the transactions. At each balance sheet date,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the balance sheet
date. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of

historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the translation of monetary items,
are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which
they arise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FERBREWT

For the year ended 31st March, 2007 #HZZZZTtF=A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Foreign currencies (continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency
of the Company (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the rate of
exchange prevailing at the balance sheet date, and their
income and expenses are translated at the average
exchange rates for the year, unless exchange rates
fluctuate significantly during the period, in which case,
the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of transactions
are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognised as a separate component of equity (the
translation reserve). Such exchange differences are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which the
foreign operation is disposed of.

Share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to directors of the Company
and employees of the Group

Share options granted after 7th November, 2002 and
vested before 1st January, 2005

The financial impact of share options granted is not
recorded in the Group's consolidated balance sheet until
such time as the options are exercised, and no charge is
recognised in the consolidated income statement in
respect of the value of options in the year. Upon the
exercise of the share options, the resulting shares issued
are recorded by the Company as additional share capital
at the nominal value of the shares and the excess of the
exercise price per share over the nominal value of the
share is recorded by the Company as share premium.

Share options granted after 7th November, 2002 and
vested after 1st January, 2005

The fair value of services received determined by reference
to the fair value of share options granted at the grant
date is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting
period, with a corresponding increase in equity (share-
based compensation reserve).
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For the year ended 31st March, 2007 #HZZZZtF=A=+—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Share-based payment transactions (continued)
Share options granted to directors of the Company
and employees of the Group (continued)

At the time when the share options are exercised, the
amount previously recognised in share option reserve will
be transferred to share premium. When the share options
are forfeited subsequent to vesting or are still not
exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to

retained profits.

Retirement benefits costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans,
state-managed pension schemes and the mandatory
provident fund scheme are charged as an expense when
employees have rendered service entitling them to the

contributions.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

a. Financial risk management objectives and
polices
The Group's and the Company’s major financial
instruments include trade and other receivables,
amount due from subsidiaries, bank balances, trade
and other payables and bank borrowings. Details
of these financial instruments are disclosed in
respective notes. The risks associated with these
financial instruments and the policies on how to
mitigate these risks are set out below. The
management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are

implemented on a timely and effective manner.
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4. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 4. BT E (E)

a.

Financial risk management objectives and a. BERREEREREEK (8)

polices (continued)

Market risk 5 Rk

Currency risk B bz

Certain trade receivables of the Group are 7N &R B E T AR SR A SN ES 5
denominated in foreign currencies. The Group B o785 B B A & 5N 58 R
currently does not have a foreign currency hedging oI\ T - B TR B B B2 NG [ B -
policy. However, the management monitors foreign THEEFERSEBEHEKRIN
exchange exposure and will consider hedging b = Bz

significant foreign currency exposure should the

need arises.

Interest rate risk T 3 [z bz

The Group's fair value interest rate risk and cash REE 2 R FENERRRRS
flow interest rate risk relates primarily to fixed- mEMNERRSRAREBEE S
rate bank loans and variable-rate trust receipt loans RITERRELEERBEER
respectively. The Group currently does not have AN ER B IR AR ET A N SR 4 B i
an interest rate swap hedging policy. However, JRIRER o AT B IR B L R A K R,
the management monitors interests exposure and - UreanEREREREEPH
will consider hedging its exposure to interest rate RNFEF =R e

risk should the need arises.

Credit risk EERKE

The Group’s and the Company’s maximum WMRXZEFAIR_EZLF=H
exposure to credit risk in the events of the =T —BHYEBTAEHESER
counterparties failure to perform their obligations ERRAVBEECEL BIRE
at 31st March, 2007 in relation to each class of BRARREERZ ZHZANEER
recognised financial assets is the carrying amount AREERARFZEERR
of those financial assets as stated in the Group's T EMBEE KA
and the Company’s balance sheet. In order to B-RTEEREEERR K&
minimise the credit risk, the management of the EEREERENEERETEE
Group has delegated a team responsible for B EEHZERHEMERET-
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and AT AR BRER BR 2 18 pE R 21380 HR 2
other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow- BN AEBREEE B R
up action is taken to recover overdue debts. In & % 18 Bl & 41 BR 5k 2 AT U = 3R
addition, the Group reviews the recoverable B ARE R BLE AU 2 FREEE
amount of each individual receivable at each AR EBEREE S M
balance sheet date to ensure that adequate S ARRESRAASE 2E
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable ERBREBEERK-

amounts. In this regard, the directors of the
Company consider that the Group's credit risk is
significantly reduced.
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4,

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

a.

Financial risk management objectives and
polices (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

The Group’s concentration of credit risk by
geographical locations is mainly in the United
States of America (“USA"). The balance of trade
receivables as at 31st March, 2007 comprise
56.63% of receivables derived from USA. In
addition, the Group has significant concentration
of credit risk, with exposure to the Group's five
largest customers comprising 78.11% of these

outstanding trade receivables.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because
the counterparties are banks with high credit
ratings assigned by international credit-rating

agencies.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management
to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate
the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The
management monitors the utilisation of bank

borrowings.

Fair value

The fair values of financial assets and financial
liabilities are determined in accordance with
generally accepted pricing models based on
discounted cash flow analysis or using prices from

observable current market transactions.

The directors consider that the carrying amounts
of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded
at amortised cost in the consolidated financial

statements approximate their fair values.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. ZHEEH
The Group currently has one business segment of AEEEREE —EHEXEBOE - &5
development and sale of digital consumer products. The HEEMAERHE - EEARTIESD
directors consider that the geographical segments by BREMES (TwER/RBEZ TR
market, irrespective of the origin of the goods/services, is M) Z b I® o fE o
the primary segment.
Primary reporting segment - geographical segments FEREHE - WEDHE
For the year ended 31st March, 2007 BE_TE+HF=H=1+—HILFE
Other
regions
Europe USA  Hong Kong in the PRC Others  Eliminated Consolidated
il
B EL: B EfhbE Bt i 54
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Thx Thx Thx Thn Thx Thx ThEx
Tumover EXE
External sales HMNAE 542,340 1,456,916 74 948,965 122,284 - 3,070,579
Inter-segment sales*  EERHHEE* - - 456 17,745 18,885 (37,086) -
Total 2% 542,340 1,456,916 530 966,710 141,169 (37,086) 3,070,579
Segment results EEL 55,482 149,044 (443) 84,192 12,510 - 300,785
Interest income MERA 10,859
Unallocated corporate ~ AAEA TR
expenses (17,673)
Finance costs ABER (81,029)
Profit before taxation B 314 7 212,942
Taxation B (10,765)
Profit for the year AEERT 202,177
@ Inter-segment sales are charged at prices agreed by both * SERNPHE DR ZIEFHEZBIE
parties. &
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 5. 2EEHR (&)
Primary reporting segment - geographical segments *
(continued)
As at 31st March, 2007 R-ZEFE+F=H=4+—H

Other
regions
Europe USA  Hong Kong in the PRC Others  Eliminated Consolidated
G
B %8 FE  HHBE Bt it 58
HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
Thx ThR Thxn Thxn Thxn Thn Thx

Assets BE
Segment assets PEEE 36,015 442,457 400 278,150 24,338 - 781,360
Unallocated corporate KA AEE
assets 2,465,055
Consolidated total assets %A 24 & 3,246,415
Liabilities aff
Unallocated corporate  RAEAAERE
liabilities and kERBER
consolidated total
liabilities 1,450,673
Other Information EER
Allowance for bad and ~ FEEEE
doubtful debts - - 451 11,250 - - 11,701
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 5. oEER ()
==

Primary reporting segment - geographical segments

(continued)

For the year ended 31st March, 2006 BE_—_ZETNF=A=1+—HIFFEZ
Other
regions

Europe USA  Hong Kong in the PRC Others Eliminated  Consolidated
G

B xE BE  EfpR Eft iR wa

HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK§'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
ThEL ThEL ThEL THL ThL ThL THRL

Turnover EEH

External sales HHHE 460,203 970,763 14,225 746,355 122,160 - 2313706

Inter-segment sales*  EEAHEE 4,833 - 135,911 117,843 20,716 (279,303) =
Total oz 465,036 970,763 150,136 864,198 142,876 (279,303) 2,313,706
Segment results EEL 51,913 105,658 6,194 90,193 13,296 - 267,254
Interest income FIEBWA 4399
Unallocated corporate  RAEARRR

expenses (12,309)
Finance costs YHER (39,638)
Profit before taxation &%t & 7 219,706
Taxation B (4,654)
Profit for the year REEGF 215,052
* Inter-segment sales are charged at prices agreed by both * EEANEENRISEFTHEZER

parties. A& -
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 5. 2EEHR (&)
Primary reporting segment - geographical segments *
(continued)
As at 31st March, 2006 (restated) R-ZEFNF=ZHA=+—H

Other
regions
Europe USA  Hong Kong in the PRC Others Eliminated  Consolidated
hE
B %8 BE EtipR Eft iR 58
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
TARL TARL TERL TERL TERL TERL TERL

Assets EE
Segment assets NREE 231,619 17,013 251 276,342 64,625 - 589,850
Unallocated corporate  RAERAEE
assets 1,890,873
Consolidated total assets %74 24 E 2,480,723
Liabilities B&
Unallocated corporate  RAEAAERE
liabilities and RERBRAE
consolidated total
liabilities 1,135,276
At 31st March, 2007 and 2006, the Group has only one RZZEELERZZFTENF=A=1+—
business segment of development and sale of digital H AEKEEE-—BEBIE— BEE
consumer products and therefore no analysis of segment BEMHEREE BRI EZ2HHHE
assets and liabilities is presented. BERBGBEZDH
All of the production facilities of the Group are located AEBZHREEERMEHAMNRE-

in the PRC.
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OTHER INCOME 6. HAiW A
Other income for the year includes the following: FAZEMBABTEATEIE:
2007 2006
—ETLE —TTAE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FHIT
Interest received on bank deposits BT FEZ R ZFE 10,859 4,399
Gain on disposal of machinery held for sale HEREFERS I E - 2,878
DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID 7. EERIEERSHFEEME
EMPLOYEES' REMUNERATION
(i) Details of directors’ remuneration are as (i) EEMEEBUOT:
follows:
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the ERNSENAE (2T F:
six (2006: seven) directors were as follows: tR)EEBHRZHE N T

Other emoluments

HitM <
Salaries
and other Pension Total
Fees benefits costs emoluments
FER

e  HtEN  BARE  Me4E
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TER TRERT TRERT TRER

Pan Su Tong (“Mr. Pan") EEaE (DELED) - 5,200 - 5,200
Lai Chi Kin, Lawrence REER 390 - - 390
Ng Lai Man, Carmen REX 325 - - 325
Cheng Kwan Wai, Sunny BE B 260 - - 260
Dong Zhi Qiang ot - - - -
Huang Xiaojian BEE - 403 - 403
Total for 2007 —TELFRER 975 5,603 - 6,578

2007 & ]
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7. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID 7. EERhEReFEEMS
EMPLOYEES' REMUNERATION (&)
(CONTINUED)
(i) Details of directors’ remuneration are as (i) EEMEFBOT: (B&)

follows: (continued)

Other emoluments

Hitn il &
Salaries
and other Pension Total
Fees benefits costs emoluments
ek

wE  HMEHN RAKKA HERs
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT TAT TAT

Pan Su Tong (“Mr. Pan”)  && @B ([7ERE]) - 5,200 = 5,200
Lai Chi Kin, Lawrence RER 300 - - 300
Ng Lai Man, Carmen REX 250 = = 250
Cheng Kwan Wai, Sunny &0 200 - - 200
Siu Wai Yip, James RIEE - 840 12 852
Huang Hui =8 - 280 - 280
Dong Zhi Qiang EE - 989 - 989
Total for 2006 —EERFHER 750 7,309 12 8,071
(i)  Employees’ remuneration: iy EEME:

Of the five highest paid individuals of the Group, EARBAERREFALFR —
one (2006: two) are directors of the Company ZH(ZETREFE MB) REARQF]
whose emoluments are disclosed above. The RES HEZHMEW EBE-H
emoluments of the remaining four (2006: three) HRAEEZOE (ZTTRF:
are employees of the Group, details of whose “R)EBZMEFRBMOT:
remuneration are as follows:

2007 2006

—®BLE —TTA
HK$’000 HK$'000

TH T FH T
Salaries, allowances and other benefits % & 285 & H {th 12 5 4,043 3,160
Pension costs RRPK A 43 30
4,086 3,190
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DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID 7. EERhEReFEEMS
EMPLOYEES' REMUNERATION (&)
(CONTINUED)
(ii) Employees’ remuneration: (continued) (i) 1EEM<: (&)
Their emoluments were within the following bands: BEZHMEN T THEE:
2007 2006
—BEtE —TTAA

Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z %70 21,000,000 7T 3 2
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,00178 7L = 1,500,000 7T - 1
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7T &= 2,000,000 7T 1 -
4 3
During the year, no remuneration was paid by the FAREBTWESZNHE T=
Group to the directors of the Company or the five E A= T EBIERMAR
highest paid individuals of the Group as an SERNRSIMAREER 2 #8
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or NIERBEB T BE - FATEE
as compensation for loss of office. None of the EREXRBREERME -
directors of the Company has waived or agreed to
waive any emoluments during the year.
FINANCE COSTS 8. HMBEH
2007 2006

—ETLE —TTAE
HK$'000 HK$'000

FEx FHET
Interest on: I EIEZH A
Bank borrowings wholly repayable within ARAFANBHEE
five years ZRATE K (80,975) (39,404)
Finance leases B & A (54) (234)

(81,029) (39,638)
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9. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 9. PBRBLADZF
2007 2006
—EBELE —ZTEAHF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT F& T
Profit before taxation has been arrived at Br A i K E 0 BR LA R &8 -
after charging:
Allowance for bad and doubtful debts REREH 11,701 =
Allowance for inventories FERE - 191
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments T8 18 & SR IE # 4
(included in administrative expenses) (GFABTIRER) 135 126
Auditors’ remuneration % R B & 2,100 2,100
Cost of inventories F &R A 2,628,037 1,920,861
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ¥ % HERREZIFTE 30,487 28,358
Amortisation of trade marks A% 2 B 8
(included in administrative expenses) (FFABITEER) 12,630 11,960
Total depreciation and amortisation MENEHBS 43,117 40,318
Foreign exchange loss HNEE B3 18 13,398 10,808
Loss on disposal of property, plant and DEME BB RZME
equipment Z 1B 58 2
Operating lease rentals in respects of rented HEWMEZKEHENES
premises 13,878 7,684
Research and development costs expensed M A 2,375 3,618
Royalty expenses R B 57 H 759 3,318
Staff costs, including directors’ emoluments ETIRA BEESEHE 46,040 52,636
and after crediting: WEFANRTEIE:
Reversal of allowance for bad and doubtful RIBREBEREE
debts - 8,228
Reversal of allowance for inventories FE R ERD 5,217 =
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No Hong Kong Profits Tax is provided as there is no
assessable profit for the year. Taxation arising in other
countries or other regions in the PRC is calculated at the
rates prevailing in the relevant jurisdiction. Pursuant to
relevant laws and regulations in the PRC, certain
subsidiaries are entitled to exemption from Enterprise
Income Tax under certain tax holidays and concessions.
And one of the subsidiaries established in Macau is
entitled to exemption from income tax under relevant tax
concessions.

Pursuant to an approval document issued by the State
Bureau of Dalian dated 25th June, 2004, Matsunichi
Technology (Dalian) Company Limited, a subsidiary of the
Company, had been designated as an advanced
technology enterprise and its income tax rate was reduced
from 33% to 15%. Moreover, Matsunichi Technology
(Dalian) Company Limited was entitled to the two year’s
exemption from Enterprise Income Tax followed by three
years of 50% tax reduction commencing from the first
profit-making year with effect from 2004.

10. TAXATION 10. BHIA
2007 2006
—EBBtE —TTRE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FHIT
The charge comprises: BIAE H B3
The Company and subsidiaries: RARRMEBAF:
Overprovision of Hong Kong Profits Tax in NEFEEBFEH
prior years R B - 356
PRC Enterprise Income Tax BTN
— Current year N (11,765) (5,010)
— Overprovision in prior years —UAEFEBERE 1,000 =
Taxation charge for the year FEMHBLH (10,765) (4,654)

ARFERITEBRRBUSH SUEREE
BHER EtBERAPEE MR
MR IR B RARDAERFTRA 2 IRIT
BT E - RIBT BEARREDI FOER &
THERREERE T RUH KR H
PHRNEERER - ZRPINLZ — M
B A BRIZAANEEEERRAE
R o

1 4% State Bureau of Dalian? = ==Y
FRAZTRBEBEDL 2] EARFZ
MEARMBERE (KE) BRAFE
EEALERFLE EMSHEEHR
33%HIMZE15% ° b A B B (K
HE)ERAFREEHBRANZE A
TN FREAEMFZIAMEHE#E
WHREER =FZH50% 2 HIBBER -
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10.

TAXATION (CONTINUED)

Pursuant to an approval document issued by the State
Bureau of Shenzhen Longgang District dated 20th July,
2004, Matsunichi Information Technology (Shenzhen)
Company Limited, a subsidiary of the Company, had been
designated as a newly established foreign manufacturing
enterprises. As a result, Matsunichi Information
Technology (Shenzhen) Company Limited was entitled to
the two year's exemption from Enterprise Income Tax
followed by three years of 50% tax reduction commencing
from the first profit-making year with effect from 2004.

On 16th March, 2007, the Fifth Plenary Session of the
Tenth National People’s Congress passed the Corporate
Income Tax Law of Mainland China (“new tax law") which
will take effect on 1st January, 2008. However, the
detailed implementation rules regarding the new tax law
have yet to be made public. Consequently, the
management is not able to a make an estimate of the
expected financial effect of the new tax law on the
Group's consolidated financial statements in the coming
year. The enactment of the new tax law is not expected
to have any financial effect on the amounts accrued in
the consolidated balance sheet in respect of current tax
payable.
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TAXATION (CONTINUED)

10. i (i&)

The taxation charge for the year can be reconciled to the FREMIAX M BRE W&k 2 BREBLA
profit before taxation per the consolidated income v A B ER AT -
statement as follows:
2007 2006
—EEEFE —TITRF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FHIT
Profit before taxation B 5 Al A 212,942 219,706
Tax charge at the domestic income tax rate BAMAEHE3I3%
of 33% (2006: 33%) (ZETRF:33%)
SHE o MEYH (70,271) (72,503)
Tax effect of income not taxable for FER T S HE AR A
tax purpose ZHBRE 12,407 7,933
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for a5 5 HUR R X
tax purpose 2R E (10,643) (8,125)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised WEERCTIBEERZ
MBERE (25,482) (39,242)
Effect of tax exemptions granted to the BT EMEAR 2B
PRC subsidiaries HELTE (6,959) 61,078
Effect of tax exemptions for offshore profits HEEFREMN 2 HIERE
ZRE 59,327 39,788
Income tax on concessionary rate BERE 2 ZE 29,856 6,061
Overprovision in prior years BEFECBERE 1,000 356
Taxation charge for the year FEBEXH (10,765) (4,654)
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11. DIVIDENDS 1. BRE
2007 2006
—ETLE —TTAE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTER FHIT
Proposed final dividend of HK6.5 cents Z kR H AR B T Ak6.55 1
(2006: HK4 cents) per share (ZZEZRE4810) 51,593 27,477
Dividend recognised as distribution during FANBRED IR ZKE
the year:
Final dividend in respect of previous year F—FERBRE 27,477 10,078
Interim dividend of HK7.5 cents H AR B F AR 7.5 (L
(2006: HK5 cents) per share (ZZTXEF:58) 51,519 34,344
2005/06 special dividend of HK7 cents —2TRH/TNEE
per share BRI A% B = A% 78 - 48,081
Total dividends paid/payable Bt /AR E AR 78,996 92,503
The final dividend in respect of the year ended 31st March, AAREEEERBE_ZSTLF=HA
2007 of HK6.5 cents (2006: HK4 cents) per share on =+ —HIEFEM793,734,683/% (=
793,734,683 (2006: 686,924,683) ordinary shares has T EINF 686,924,683/ ) @K =
been proposed by the directors of the Company and is REREEGRE 5B (ZEZTRF 4
subject to approval by the shareholders in the forthcoming B - BEEZEEAREERRAEAFER
annual general meeting. TLRERR 2
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EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share

is based on the following data:

12. BRER

s

IR A R HE BRI TR T AR

2007 2006
—BBtE _—ZTTRE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FHBIT
Earnings b=
Profit for the purpose of basic and diluted R EERERNREFRF 2
earnings per share (profit for the year B (KRR EEFEA
attributable to equity holders of the FE& 1t [ ) )
Company) 202,177 215,052
2007 2006
—22tE —TTRX
Number Number
of shares of shares
Ko EAE B2 B
Number of shares vgrig 4=
Weighted average number of ordinary shares ~ FEtEFREARTFZ
for the purpose of basic earnings per share T AR N 9 B 707,637,834 677,701,160
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares BEBRELTBR 2 FE
— Share options — MER 12,605,037 8,356,667
Weighted average number of ordinary shares ~ Bt EESR#EERF 2
for the purpose of diluted earnings per share T AR N AE T # 720,242,871 686,057,827
2007 F #&
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. MIE -HBIRRE
Furniture,
Plant and Leasehold  fixtures and Motor
Buildings machinery improvements  equipment vehicles Total
BE B
BF HBERRE NERE  EEREHM "E L
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TR THEL TAT TR TEL TR

THE GROUP r5E

AT COST K&

At 1st April, 2005 R-ZZREMAE—H 108,656 162,217 3,894 5,379 3,772 283,918
Additions byl 104 3,627 1,890 705 1,330 7,656
Disposals k3 = = (2,086) - (698) (2,784)

At 31st March, 2006 RZZTZXF=A

==k 108,760 165,844 3,698 6,084 4,404 288,790
Exchange realignment [ 5 3% 4,568 14,022 - 428 166 19,184
Additions by 1,178 2,939 1,008 647 573 6,345
Disposals e - - (289) (179) (145) (613)

At 31st March, 2007 R=ZZt%£=FH
=+—H 114,506 182,805 4,417 6,980 4,998 313,706

DEPRECIATION AND HER#H

AMORTISATION
At 1st April, 2005 R-EZRFNA—H 1,487 25,064 2,795 2,411 1,121 32,878
Provided for the year ~ FE#fE 3,171 20,876 1,626 1,874 811 28,358
Eliminated on disposals & K 8 = = (1,993) - (188) (2,181)

At 31st March, 2006 R-ZEARE=FR

=t+—H 4,658 45,940 2,428 4,285 1,744 59,055
Exchange realignment [ % 8% 331 2,983 - 141 49 3,504
Provided for the year ~ FE#fE 4,566 21,839 1,263 1,933 886 30,487
Eliminated on disposals it % &5 34 - - (289) (102) (89) (480)

At 31st March, 2007 R=ZF+%£=A
=ElH 9,555 70,762 3,402 6,257 2,590 92,566

CARRYING AMOUNTS BEE
At 31st March, 2007 R=ZB+F=FH
=t+-H 104,951 112,043 1,015 723 2,408 221,140

At 31st March, 2006 R-ZZ R E=A
=+-H 104,102 119,904 1,270 1,799 2,660 229,735
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For the year ended 31st March, 2007 #HZZZZTtF=A=+—HILFE

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(CONTINUED)

Note:

On 31st July, 2003, the Group entered into a purchase
agreement to acquire the entire equity interests in Best
Concord Group Limited, which beneficially owned a plant
under construction situated at Shenzhen, the PRC, from
Matsunichi Communications (Hong Kong) Limited, a
company which was wholly and beneficially owned by
Mr. Pan, a substantial shareholder and a director of the
Company, at a consideration of HK$78,000,000, which
is included in the buildings. The remaining balance
outstanding as at 31st March, 2007 of HK$11,700,000
has been included in the amount due to a related
company in the current liabilities (see note 25) which
shall be payable upon completion of due registration of
the title of the plant in the name of Best Concord Group
Limited, when all necessary licences for commencing
operation of the plant by Best Concord Group Limited
having been obtained. As at 31st March, 2007, the title
of the plant was registered under the name of a

subsidiary directly held by Best Concord Group Limited.

The buildings are located on land held under medium

term lease and are located in the PRC.

The carrying amount of the Group’s plant and machinery
includes an amount of HK$457,000 (2006: HK$730,000)
in respect of assets held under finance leases.

13. M= -#BERRME (E)

R_ZTZE=F+tA=+—80 4~£E
I —EHBERH MRAAR(F
7 ) B R A & U fEBest Concord
Group Limitedz 2 #PR&#E 1A B E &l
(BB)BRRADARAREEZRRE
REEEFLEEEREmEA -Best
Concord Group Limited 8| E &% %A
AR BUORINT 2 RS - F 3
Z 18 478,000,0007% 7T - A A ¥ 3
EIAEF R_TETLF=A=+
—BEM®mRNZ8®RRA
11,700,000 7T EFIA R B & FH
B —MRER R KRE (RN
25) - J& 15 B ) /% 52 B R B 3 4 A
Best Concord Group Limited# % 1E
X & i A R EUf8 Best Concord
Group Limited & FE IR EFTH 2 —
DA ERAX G- RZET+F=A
=+ —H BWFE ¥ %2 NUBest
Concord Group LimitedE ##H 2
MEARREER

ZBFURAPHEANRFE L Y
B

AREEZ TS NEEZREES A
BEMLFE 2 EEFTG 3K A457,000
BT (ZZEZ/XF:730,00087T) °
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For the year ended 31st March, 2007 #HZZZZtF=A=+—HILFE

13.

14.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(CONTINUED)

The above items of property, plant and equipment are
depreciated on a straight-line basis at the following rates

per annum:
Buildings

¥
Plant and machinery
e

Leasehold improvements

HEMREE
Furniture, fixtures and equipment

B K E N2zt

13. M= -#BERRME ()

EE SRR E DN ERERT
JEESE S

Over the estimated useful life of 20 years, or the unexpired term

of the relevant lease, whichever is shorter
“HFEZAFAAFHAHBKRERAEOBEA (AREHERE)
10% — 20%
10% —20%
Over the estimated useful life of 5 years or the unexpired term

of the relevant lease, whichever is shorter
EEZEFIRFRAEARBERBAOHA (ABREHERE)
20% - 33',%
20% — 33"/, %

Motor vehicles 20%
RE 20%
TRADE MARKS 14. BE

HK$'000

THET

THE GROUP rEH
COST R <
Balance at 1st April, 2005 NZZTREMNA— B2 229,600
Acquired during the year F AW 22,050
Balance at 31st March, 2006 and 2007 WRZ-ZEZEZNER_TTE+LE=A=+—H#&& 251,650
AMORTISATION # 8
Balance at 1st April, 2005 RZZETHFENHA—B2#&# (2,870)
Charge for the year FESTH (11,960)
Balance at 1st April 2006 R-ZZEZTNFNA—B&E# (14,830)
Charge for the year FELTH (12,630)
Balance at 31st March, 2007 RN_ZEZ+F=A=+—H#&&H (27,460)
CARRYING AMOUNTS REE
At 31st March, 2007 R-_EE+F=A=+—H 224,190
At 31st March, 2006 R_EBEERF=A=+—H 236,820
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GERBREM T

For the year ended 31st March, 2007 #HZZZZTtF=A=+—HILFE

TRADE MARKS (CONTINUED)

On 3rd November, 2004, the Group entered into two
purchase agreements to acquire the trade marks, service
marks, logos and commercial symbols of “Matsunichi” in
Hong Kong and in countries or districts outside the PRC
("non-PRC trade marks”) and in PRC (“PRC trade marks"”),
respectively, with Matsunichi International Holdings
Limited (“MIHL") or/and Guangdong Matsunichi
Electronics Limited (“GME"), Guangdong Matsunichi
Communication Technology Company Limited (“GMCT")
and others, in which Mr. Pan has beneficial interests in
MIHL, GME and GMCT (collectively referred to as the
“Acquisitions”). The consideration was satisfied by cash
of HK$20,000,000 and issue of 95,000,000 new ordinary
shares of HK$0.05 each.

The resolution in respect of the Acquisitions was duly
passed by the shareholders at the extraordinary general
meeting held on 24th January, 2005. Pursuant to the
non-PRC trade marks agreement, HK$20,000,000 cash
was paid and 80,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company
were issued and allotted to MIHL or its nominees on 24th
January, 2005 resulted in a total consideration of
HK$229,600,000. The 80,000,000 ordinary shares of the
Company issued at a price of HK$2.62, being the closing
price of the Company’s shares on 24th January, 2005,
the date on which the Group has taken control of the
non-PRC trade marks.

The PRC trade marks agreement was completed on 1st
November, 2005, and accordingly, 15,000,000 ordinary
shares were allotted and issued to Jade Forest Limited on
that date at a price of HK$1.47, being the closing price
of the shares.

14.

EE ()
R-ZZEZNF+—A=H ' ~EE5 7|
HEMAEBREEEGR AR ([ R
S8R RERMNAEEEGRAF
([BERMAEE]) ERDHEBARR
BHOBRAR ([ERLBBARE])
REMATEI MIEEE 3 AKE
MBI EE REEL BRERIKEER
SR BB R B AINE R = 2
([FEREEE]) RN R ZER ([
BEEEZE]) mELERNABERSER-
BRABEHRRERDBBABE S

Enign (GEAZSWESHE]) -
KB &3 € 20,000,000/ 7T & 1T
95,000,000/% & #x F{E0.05% 7T 2 ¥ &
WMl HFR AT

EHZEWBEE AR RERENR S
ETRF— A=+ MHARTZRERE
Ag EEXBRE - BIEIET N HE
I8 4 20,000,000/ T B X M
80,000,000 R AN AR EBRIER=F
TRE—AZTHBETREZETAH
BREESERBAN BHAERER
229,600,000/ 0 #22.6278 7T (B AR
ARMR=ZZEERAF—AZ+THBEARSE
EHRFEPENEEGEE B WM
&) Z B 317 280,000,0008% A& A &
@Ak

hEEEREER - SEEAE+—A—
H 7R - B 1t + 15,000,0000% & i Ak B 7
B BER1.478 T2 B (B m 2 W m
&) Fig & & %17 T Jade Forest Limited °
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For the year ended 31st March, 2007 #HZZZZtF=A=+—HILFE

14. TRADE MARKS (CONTINUED) 14. BE (&)
The fair value of trade marks at the date of acquisition RKERB 2 AEAFEEENERG
could not be estimated reliably. Accordingly, the fair value BN AIEZATFEN2EMR LR
of trade marks are measured by reference to the fair AERTAZATFEFE WRAEE
value of the equity instruments granted, measured at the BISHE 2 BHG 2o

date the Group obtained the trade marks.

Both the non-PRC trade marks and the PRC trade marks FER B R BIEZE R EFER T A
are amortised over their remaining useful lives of 17 years FHMT7FE (ZETRF185F) N#EdH-
(2006: 18 years). In the opinion of the directors of the EERE BAEZERAEETNMERER
Company, the underlying value of the trade marks was HERZKREE:
not less than their carrying amounts as at the balance
sheet date.
15. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES 15. WEBARARE
THE COMPANY
¥ NN
2007 2006
—EBLE —TTRE
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FTER FET
Unlisted shares, at cost less impairment I EmRG AR
losses recognised ERAREERE 72,897 78,000
Unlisted capital contribution, at cost FEEMEE KA 163,188 163,188
236,085 241,188
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31st ARREEWNBARIR=_ZEZ+F=A
March, 2007 are set out in note 40. =t+—BZERERFEL -
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For the year ended 31st March, 2007 #HZZZZTtF=A=+—HILFE

16. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 16. BENHEERIE
The Group’s prepaid lease payments represent land use AEEZFEMBERIATE AR ALY
rights situated in the PRC under medium-term leases. RAEURFEZ tHERAE
THE GROUP
KEE
2007 2006
—EELE —ZTRF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FET
Analysed for reporting purposes as: IS BB EH DA
Current portion mEN B 135 126
Non-current portion ERB I 5,936 5,670
6,071 5,796
17. OTHER ASSETS 17. HtEE
THE GROUP AND
THE COMPANY
FAEERAEAT
2007 2006
—EELE —ZTRF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FTER FET
Club debentures BES 610 610
Less: Impairment losses recognised B EERZBEEIE (520) (520)
920 90

The club debentures are having an indefinite useful life

because they are expected to generate economic benefit

indefinitely. The club debentures are tested for impairment

annually by reference to the market value.

EHEFEAERPBMNFR RER
BRAGESTA M A B R & R AR 25 o
SREFRFLETMEETRENA-
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For the year ended 31st March, 2007 #HZZZZtF=A=+—HILFE

18. INVENTORIES 18. #&
THE GROUP
rEHE
2007 2006
—E22tE —TTRE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTER FTET
Raw materials R# 45,043 54,847
Work in progress 2K i 6,855 2,390
Finished goods 2K 7,186 11,745
59,084 68,982
19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 19. FEWLBR R % H 2 FE WK A
The Group allows credit periods ranging from 30 days to AEEGTHEEF ZEEHNF30H
180 days to its trade customers. Longer credit periods Z180H BEERU KRR ITFERH
are granted to several well established customers with RBeEFAESRRZEER-
long business relationship.
An aged analysis of trade receivables at the balance sheet AT RREE B RERE D 2 B ER K
date is set out as follows: DT
THE GROUP
rEEHE
2007 2006
—E22tE —TTARHE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTER FTET
0 — 30 days T E30H 262,028 57,649
31- 90 days 31290H 445,733 18,003
91 - 180 days 912 180H 44 307,315
Over 180 days 180H JA £ 73,555 206,883
781,360 589,850
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FERBREWT

For the year ended 31st March, 2007 #HZZZZTtF=A=+—HILFE

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 19. W AR AR H b f& I FR 1B
(CONTINUED) (%8 )
The Group's trade receivables that are denominated in e SR E S Z hee &M LASN 2 B
currencies other than the functional currency of the BN 2 AN B E R RN
relevant group entities are set out below:
usbD
EY
HK$'000
FET
At 31st March, 2007 —ZET+F=HA=+—H 477,573
At 31st March, 2006 —2ERF=ZA=+—H 141,533
AMOUNTS DUE FROM RELATED 20. FEWEE RIE
COMPANIES
Particulars of the amounts due from related companies in AAREEFLEREER R ZER
which Mr. Pan, a director of the Company, has beneficial FEARRBEZFBET:
interests are as follows:
THE GROUP
r~EH
Maximum
amount
Balance at Balance at outstanding
31st March, 1st April, during
2007 2006 the year
R-ZZTtFE R-BBARE £R
Name of related company EEEF= MA—B HRKERE
BEATER 2 ZiES ZBRENEHE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTAT TAT FTAT
BERMABAMBRNERLDA 753 - 753
RESHEF ORI BRAF 11 245 245
MBEERLENRAE 2,209 1,888 2,209
2,973 2,133
The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and repayable BEFRIEERKR BB RIRERKEE

on demand.
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21.

22,

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS

THE GROUP

The amounts represent deposits pledged to a bank to
secure short-term banking facilities granted to the Group

and are therefore classified as current assets.

The deposits carried fixed interest rate at 0.14% to 0.16%
(2006: 1.15% to 2.5%) per annum. The pledged bank
deposits will be released upon the settlement of relevant

bank borrowing.

OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES

THE GROUP AND THE COMPANY

Bank balances and cash

Bank balances include short-term bank deposits which
carry effective interest rates ranging from 0.72% to 1.98%
(2006: 1.25% to 2.98%) per annum.

THE COMPANY

Amounts due from subsidiaries/amount due to a
subsidiary

The amounts due from/to subsidiaries are unsecured,

interest-free and repayable on demand.

Annual Report 2007

21.

22.

SR FRITER

rEE
BBREDEERTRTZER AR
BRI AEEZERRTHE - WU
SERRBAE-

GREEBHE BEXATF0.14%2
0.16% (ZZEZRNF:1.15%22.5%) °
BEEARTERERNEEBE@ARITER
(3358

HtWBEERAR

AEBRAAF

RITRGEREE
RTEGFERERBRITEN RERF
KN FHF072%E1.98% (T A
HF:1.25%%22.98%) 5T B o

ENYNS

FENCHT B 2 A1 TR, JE(S — I B 22 B
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FERBREWT

For the year ended 31st March, 2007 #HZZZZTtF=A=+—HILFE

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 23. FEMABRAKRHAMESKIE
An aged analysis of trade payables at the balance sheet AR BREE B ARE S S 2 B ERK
date is set out as follows: DT
THE GROUP
NEE
2007 2006
—EELtE —ZETF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHIT
0 - 90 days ZZ90H 22,457 34,644
91 - 180 days 91%180H 9,174 16,063
Over 180 days 1808 M E 24,382 25,730
56,013 76,437
Dividend payable JE 15 B 2. 52,594 9,636
Other payables H & 1 5K TE 122,070 121,315
230,677 207,388
AMOUNT DUE TO ULTIMATE HOLDING 24. B RAZERDBNRIE
COMPANY
THE GROUP AND THE COMPANY REBERAKA T
The amount is unsecured, interest free and repayable on BAZENERE EEMIEEREE-
demand.
AMOUNT DUE TO A RELATED COMPANY 25. FE{t—REREE A 8 &IE

THE GROUP AND THE COMPANY

The amount represents amount due to Matsunichi
Communications (Hong Kong) Limited in which Mr. Pan
is the ultimate shareholder and a director (see note 13).

The amount is unsecured, interest free and repayable on

demand.

AEERARAT

ZHRBASENRBER (BE) BRA
BlZHRIBBEERMBEM (FEER)E
BRABZHEBRRRES (RMFE13) -

ZARBTEER RO RIRBERKEER-
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26. BANK BORROWINGS

26. SRITER

THE GROUP
rEH
2007 2006
—BEEtE —TTAEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FAET
Bank loans RITE R 421,751 56,580
Trust receipt loans ERBIEER 771,282 833,812
Bank overdrafts RITEX - 964
1,193,033 891,356
Analysis as: ST :

Secured EEEii 90,418 2,946
Unsecured 4 4 1 1,102,615 888,410
1,193,033 891,356

The Group's bank borrowings that are denominated in
currencies other than the functional currency of the

relevant group entities are set out below:

NHEREEER ZEEEIAINERE
BEZAREERITEREINDT

usD

HK$'000

TET

At 31st March, 2007 R-ZZEZEL+F=ZA=1+—H 440,763
At 31st March, 2006 R-_ZEEREF=A=1+—H =

The Group’s bank loans represented a revolving one year
fixed-rate loans and are arranged at an average rate of
6.55% (2006: 5.58%) per annum.

The trust receipt loans and bank overdraft carry interest

at prevailing market rates.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FERBREWT

For the year ended 31st March, 2007 #HZZZZTtF=A=+—HILFE

27. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES

27. MEMNER

Present value

Minimum of minimum
lease payments lease payments
BEXGHESHE BEXNHEBEZRE
2007 2006 2007 2006

—RRtE ZTTSF “BRLE ZTTNF
HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000
TRER TAT TRR TAT

THE GROUP rEE

Amounts payable under RIRRE AR
finance leases: ZEH:

Within one year —FR"

In the second to fifth year FEERF
inclusive (REEEME)

Less: Future finance charges HoARBEER

Present value of lease MOEBKHRE
obligations

Less: Amount due for settlement  J&l: —F N 2 Hi & & 2 E
within one year

Amount due for settlement —FRIMEERE
after one year

The lease terms are three years. Interest rates are fixed at
the contract date. All leases are on a fixed repayment
basis and no arrangements have been entered into for
contingent rental payments.

The fair value of the Group’s obligations under finance
lease was determined based on the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted using the
prevailing market rates at the balance sheet dates
approximate to their carrying amount.

193 306 158 252

289 467 274 431

482 773 432 683

(50) (90) - =

432 683 432 683
(158) (252)

274 431

HOFEHAE=F -FERFLEHNEH
BRI -PmAEMNBRABEEERELE A
BIVERNAERAIXNIARE 2 RH-

AEBBEBOAE 2 A FERERA
REER 2 EEMHF KRB ZHETR
KRSREREHE UHEFNEK
M fE -
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For the year ended 31st March, 2007 #HZZZZtF=A=+—HILFE

28. SHARE CAPITAL

28. A

Number of shares

Share capital

RAEE BA&
2007 2006 2007 2006
ZEBtE ZEEXE ZBEHE  ZEERF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
(i FRL THT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each ~ BREE0.055 2 @R
Authorised: ETE
At 1st April and 31st March REA-BRR=A
== 10,000,000,000 10,000,000,000 500,000 500,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRAR:
At 1st April ROA—H 686,924,683 669,086,683 34,346 33,454
Issue of new shares BEamkn (a) - 15,000,000 - 750
Issue of new shares by way NRERAZTHRN
of placement (b) 100,000,000 - 5,000 -
Issue of new shares upon AaEEREZTHRR
exercise of share options (0 900,000 6,300,000 45 315
Shares repurchased and BE R ERn
cancelled (d) - (3,462,000) - (173)
At 31st March R=F=1+—-8 787,824,683 686,924,683 39,391 34,346
(a) Pursuant to an agreement dated 3th November, (a) BER-_ZZTNF+—A=HH

2004 for the acquisition of the trade marks from
MIHL, a company in which Mr. Pan has a beneficial
interest, 80,000,000 and 15,000,000 new shares
of HK$0.05 each in the Company were issued and
allotted to MIHL or its nominees on 24th January,
2005 and 1st November, 2005, respectively. All
shares issued rank pari passu with the then existing
shares in issue in all respects.

Annual Report 2007

MABEREE (BELEEEE
w2 AR LB EIRET AL
Z ¥ & © 80,000,000/ &
15,000,0008% & B& E{E0.0578 7T
ZARBFBRMDED R =TT
AF—A-_+HAR-_ZZTRF
+—A—BETREZETLER
BREBSERBAFTBEET
BROESTEHEERZRED
BITROEZERSEE-



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FERBREWT

For the year ended 31st March, 2007 #HZZZZTtF=A=+—HILFE

28. SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED)

(b)

On 21st December, 2006, arrangements were
made for a private placement to independent
private investors of up to an aggregate of
130,000,000 new shares of HK$0.05 each in the
Company at a price of HK$2.75 per share,
representing a discount of approximately 11.29%
to the closing market price of the Company’s
shares on 21st December, 2006.

On 15th January, 2007, 100,000,000 new shares
of HK$0.05 each in the Company were being
subscribed at a price of HK$2.75 per share. The
proceeds were used to provide additional general
working capital for the Company. These new
shares were issued under the general mandate
granted to the directors at the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 28th August,
2006 and rank pari passu with other shares in

issue in all respects.

During the year, 700,000 shares of HK$0.05 each
in the Company were issued at a price of HK$1.54
per share upon exercise of share options granted
on 20th April, 2004. Another 200,000 shares of
HK$0.05 each in the Company was issued at a
price of HK$1.43 per share upon exercise of share

options granted on 28th September, 2005.

In last year, 800,000 shares of HK$0.05 each in
the Company were issued at a price of HK$1.3
per share upon exercise of share options granted
on 5th Feburary, 2005. Another 5,500,000 shares
of HK$0.05 each in the Company were issued at a
price of HK$1.54 per share upon exercise of share
options granted on 20th April, 2004.

28. IR (48)

(b)

DRBELAAREEEL AR
ERH RBR2.758 L 2 B
it & & #£130,000,0005% & % ™
B0.058 T2 AR A R 1D Bl &
BEREEBRMHNR=-ZFZEF+=
AZ+—HBzmEE
11.29% °

T Lt —-HA+HB A
00,000,000% & A% E 1€ 0.05%8
TLZAR RN IZGAR2.75%
TZERRB-FSHIEBERER
AAGREEIN-—REEES-
ZETRODEEREARFTR_ZEE
NENAZFNBRITZBRFEA
FRELETESZ —RE#ER
T ESAEEHEEME FHTR

MEBRSES-

=

FA-RZZEZENFHA=1+H
R BRETER BRER
1548 T 2 BRETARAEFR
ME{E0.05/% 702 700,0000% f% 15 °
SN RZEERFALAZFN
AEEHBRETER 2R
1438 T2 BRETEREE
0.057% 7T 2 200,0000% 78 2 &) f%

,f/'\ ®

EF R-_ZEENF-_RFAAR
7 BERREIT R RT3
BT BRREITEREE.05H
7T 2 800,000% & A &l iR 0 ° 55
INRZZBZWNFNA =BT
EzBERETER BRER
1548 T 2 BRETARAIGR
M f50.05/% 7T 2 5,500,000 A%

,f/'\ ®
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For the year ended 31st March, 2007 #HZZZZtF=A=+—HILFE

28. SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED)

(d) In July, 2005, the Company repurchased its own (d) RZZEZRFEA KAREHE
shares through the Stock Exchange as follows: B PR E B AR S RM AT :

No. of ordinary Aggregate

80

shares of Price per share consideration
HK$0.05 each Highest Lowest paid

Month of repurchase BREE0.05% T BRER
LAERER) EBEREE BE R ENREARE
HK$ HK$ HK$'000
BT BT THT
July 2005 —ETHFELA 3,462,000 1.65 1.55 5,691

The above shares were cancelled upon repurchase.

None of the Company’s subsidiaries purchased,

sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed

AR B RS B A RN

ARRZMBRARANFAL LR
B HERXBOARAEMR LT

securities during the year. K
29. SHARE OPTIONS 29. BBARAE

The Company operates a share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives or
rewards to participants.

Under the share option scheme, the board of directors of
the Company may grant options as an incentive to eligible
employees, including directors of the Company and its
subsidiaries, to subscribe for shares in the Company at
the price determined by the directors, but shall not be
lower than the higher of (i) the closing price of the
Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange on the date of
grant; (ii) the average of the closing prices of the
Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange for the five
trading days immediately preceding the date of grant;
and (i) the nominal value of the Company’s shares. The
maximum number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the share option scheme is not
permitted to exceed 10% of the total number of shares
of the Company on the date of adopting the Scheme. An
option may be exercised at any time within ten years
from the date, upon payment of HK$1 on acceptance.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2007 #HZZZZTtF=A=+—HILFE

SHARE OPTIONS (CONTINUED) 29. BIR#E (&)
The offer of a grant of share options under the scheme BEBEZTEREERE 2 2F AITRE
may be accepted within 28 days from the date of the = B AR ET 28 AABRAERN B
offer by the grantee. The vesting and exercisable period HERE B RTEARESES
of the share option granted is determinable at the entire BETE BTFEHISBaEMAR LR
discretion of the board of directors but the exercisable 104 ©
period will not exceed a period of ten years immediate
after acceptance of grant.
The following tables disclose details of the Company’s TREBRFNBHEE (EZHRINFHE
share options held by employees (other than directors) ZARAEREZFEREBEFTEEZ
and movements in such holdings during the year: 29
Number of share options
BRERE
Subscription Outstanding Granted Lapsed Exercised  Outstanding Reclassification Lapsed Exercised  Outstanding
price Exercisable at during during during at during during during at
Date of grant per share period 1.4.2005 the year the year the year 1.4.2006 the year the year the year 31.3.2007
B B R
b 2 ik BTN =t 343
gk BA-A BA-A £me ZA=t-A
RHUBH AR ik HATE  EABRE  EABAN  EREfR HAGE EfiAR  EMERM  EREAR HRTE
HKS (Note 2)
AL (it2)
(Note 1)
(1)
5..2004 130 5.2.2005 to 2,550,000 = (1,225,000) (50,000) 1,275,000 (150,000) (625,000) = 500,000
“EIpf 42.2014
ZRAA e ¥ Sits
ZRaRZ
=
ZRmA
5.2.2004 130 52200610 2,550,000 - (1,25,000) - 135000 (150,000) (625,000) - 550,000
—2En 42.2014
£-A%A 255
“R1RZ
I Sk
~AEA
204.2004 1.54 20.4.2004 to 8,350,000 = (1,950,000) = 6,400,000 (100,000) (2,250,000) (200,000) 3,850,000
—EIpfF 19.4.2014
mA=1A =
MAZtRZ
ZE-PE
mATHE
28.9.2005 143 289200510 - 8,100,000 (300,000) - 7,800,000 - (350,000) (2000000 7,250,000
it E5ik3 27.9.2015
AAZTNEB i Sk
ARZTNBE
Z3-1%
ARZtEH
13,450,000 8,100,000 (4,700,000) (50,000) 16,800,000 (400,000) (3,850,000) (400,000 12,150,000

2007 % #
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For the year ended 31st March, 2007 #HZZZZtF=A=+—HILFE

29. SHARE OPTIONS (CONTINUED) 29. BRE (&)
Details of share options held by the directors of the RN ERFMBARRRESRE 2 BRE
Company are as follows: BT
Number of share options
BREYE
Subscription Outstanding Granted Lapsed  Outstanding Redlassification Lapsed  Outstanding
price Exercisable at during during at during during at
Date of grant per share period 1.4.2005 the year the year 1.4.2006 the year the year 31.3.2007
R R R
ZEERE b+ Y% I
8k BA-H mA-H L ZR=t-8
RAAH ARE i WAGE  EABRY  FRERA AT ENSE  ERMEAX WA
HKS (Note 2)
BT (B3¥2)
(Note 1)
(1)
5.2.2004 1.30 5.2.2005 to 1,300,000 - (1,150,000) 150,000 150,000 (150,000) 150,000
“TTME 422014
ZAEA Z2RRE
“AnRE
—Z-pF
—AmA
5.2.2004 1.30 5.2.2006 to 1,300,000 - (1,150,000 150,000 150,000 (150,000) 150,000
TN 4.2.2014
ZAnA ZRERE
ZAnRZE
“2-mE
“AmA
20.4.2004 1.54 20.4.2004 to 500,000 - - 500,000 100,000 (500,000) 100,000
=i 19.4.2014
BAZTH b U3
MA-TREZ
“E-pE
mATAR
28.9.2005 1.43 28.9.2005 to = 3,500,000 (2,000,000) 1,500,000 = (1,500,000) =
S 5k 27.9.2015
ABZTNH S ik
ARZTNBE
“Z-1f
AA=t+A
3,100,000 3,500,000 (4,300,000) 2,300,000 400,000 (2,300,000) 400,000
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31st March, 2007 #HZZZZTtF=A=+—HILFE

SHARE OPTIONS (CONTINUED)

29.

Details of share options held by other participants of the

Company are as follows:

B (&)

ARmEMBEERE 2 BREFFD

T

Number of share options

BREHE
Subscription Outstanding Exercised Outstanding Lapsed Exercised Outstanding
price Exercisable at during at during during at
Date of grant per share period 1.4.2005 the year 1.4.2006 the year the year  31.3.2007
R-B21%F RZZBRE R-B2tE
mA-H mA-H ZB=1-H
REAM ERARE THEA HATE FREFE  HATE FAEXN FREAE  HAME
HKS
AT
(Note 1)
(&)
5.2.2004 1.30 5.2.2005 to 6,150,000 (750,000) 5,400,000 - - 5,400,000
—ZTME_AEA 4.2.2014
“STRE-ARAZ
—T-mE¥_AMA
5.2.2004 1.30 5.2.2006 to 6,150,000 - 6,150,000 - - 6,150,000
—ZZENE-AEA 4.2.2014
2T E-ARRZE
“T-mE-AMA
20.4.2004 1.54 2042004 to 21,150,000  (5,500,000) 15,650,000 - (500,000) 15,150,000
“EEMERA=TA 19.4.2014
“ZENEMA-TRE
“Z-MENATAR
33,450,000  (6,250,000) 27,200,000 = (500,000) 26,700,000
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For the year ended 31st March, 2007 #HZZZZtF=A=+—HILFE

29. SHARE OPTIONS (CONTINUED) 29.

Notes:

1. The closing prices of the Company’s shares immediately
preceding the date of grant of 5th Feburary, 2004, 20th
April, 2004 and 28th September, 2005 were HK$1.30,
HK$1.48 and HK$1.43, respectively.

2. One of the employees of the Company was appointed

as director of the Company during the year.

3. The options granted to other participants were for the
purpose of providing incentives to the Group's suppliers
and customers and were determined by reference to the
fair values of share options granted to the directors of
the Company and the Group’s employees at the

corresponding grant date.

The vesting period ends on the date the exercisable period
of the share options begins.

In respect of the share options exercised during the year,
the weighted average share price at the date of exercise
is HK$3.33.

The estimated weighted average fair value of the options
granted was HK$0.4235 per share. The fair value was
calculated using the Black-Scholes option pricing model.
The inputs into the model were as follows:

B (&)
Mt

1. ARABRMREERLBH-_ZET
ME-_AABE —ZTTWEFMA=+
BER=ZZEZERAFAA=FTNAAZEK
MED A A1.3087T1.48%8 T Kk
1.438 T

3. ETHEM2BAEBREZBNOTA
TAEEZ B REFERE WE
2ERNEERLARRTARAE
ERAEBREZBEREZ AFE
e B E -

FEANEBRETENERBRGEE
%0

MENBITEZERENS K178
B Z MiEFHRER3.338 T

P 2 B 2 (st AR FE
#%0.42358 o AT ETIFBE AR —
AFRATHEEEEXNFE - KX AZ
FS e UNE

28.9.2005
—E2RFNAZTNE

Share price BB

Exercise price @
Expected volatility 8 B R 18
Expected life 78 HA 4 A
Risk-free rate kR X
Expected dividend yield 8 B AR B U 5
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For the year ended 31st March, 2007 #HZZZZTtF=A=+—HILFE

SHARE OPTIONS (CONTINUED)
Expected volatility was determined by using the historical
volatility of the Company’s share price over the previous

twelve months.

In last year, the Group recognised total expenses of
HK$5,192,000 related to equity-settled share-based

payment transactions.

The Black-Scholes option pricing model requires the input
of highly subjective assumptions including the volatility
of share price, changes in subjective input assumptions
can materially affect the fair value estimate.

RESERVES

THE GROUP

Details of changes in reserves of the Group are set out in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page
34.

Capital reserve represents the loans waived by former
minority shareholders of a wholly-owned subsidiary in
the PRC. Pursuant to local regulations, this amount has
been transferred to a non-distributable reserve of the

subsidiary.

PRC statutory reserves are reserves required to be
maintained under the relevant PRC laws applicable to
PRC subsidiaries of the Company and are non-distributable

reserves of the subsidiaries.

29.

30.

B (|)
EERIERARLARENBET @
Rz RIEERE -

AEBREFRARKEE Z AN 5
ERINARGBERIAXEER
5,192,000/% Jt °

7%~ SRR BB R A
EETBZBREAE DEREE
A&t A E BB AR M R R R B T
AFEZEHEREAY S

fi& &8

AEE
AEEREEDHBERNENELE
ARABHEN-

EARERETE2ENBRARZALHK
BR#R 2 ER-RIBE MR P Z KA
EEBRENBERARZTAIDIRFHEEA -

T BIATE i+ e 45 B R X AN 2 B R BT B
REZHEBATFBEAPIRERLZHE
I M8 AR 2 A DK R e
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30. RESERVES (CONTINUED)

30. fi#fe (&)

THE COMPANY AN
Share-based Capital
Share compensation  redemption Retained
premium reserve reserve profits Total
RAEE ROMEFEE BLAERREE REEF aE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T THT THT THT THT
Balance at st April, 2005 R-ZZHEMA—H
ey 1,095,201 6,456 - 19,391 1,121,048
Issue of new shares (note 28) %47 ¥Rk {n (Hi3F28) 21,300 = = = 21,300
Recognition of equity settled BRUBALE 2
share-hased payments DARR 1 2 250 2 1 3% = 5,192 = = 5,192
Exercise of share options 1P iR 2 9,447 (252) - = 9,195
Lapse of share options BRERK = (1,886) = 1,886 =
Profit for the year AEEZHT - - - 136,973 136,973
Shares repurchased and B R REEke
cancelled - - 173 (5,691) (5,518)
Final dividend for 2005 “ZRRERBRE = = = (10,078) (10,078)
Interim and special dividends —ZZ;XERH L
for 2006 BRI E - - - (82,425) (82,425)
Balance at 31st March, 2006 R-ZZ R E=A
=t+—H&R 1,125,948 9,510 173 60,056 1,195,687
Issue of new shares (note 28) Z{T# Mk {n (Kiz28) 265,765 - = - 265,765
Exercise of share options T B RE 1,388 (70) = = 1,318
Lapse of share options BRERN - (1,409) - 1,409 =
Profit for the year REERT - - = 142,187 142,187
Final dividend for 2006 “TERERPRE - - = (27,477) (27,477)
Interim dividend for 2007 =TT FHREHRE = - = (51,519) (51,519)
Balance at 31st March, 2007 R-ZZt&=R
=t+—H&R 1,393,101 8,031 173 124,656 1,525,961
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32.

33.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FERBREWT

For the year ended 31st March, 2007 #HZZZZTtF=A=+—HILFE

DEFERRED TAXATION

At the balance sheet date, the Group had unused tax
losses of approximately HK$234,896,000 (2006:
HK$157,678,000) available to offset future profits. The
losses may be carried forward indefinitely. No deferred
taxation asset has been recognised in respect of the tax
losses due to the unpredictability of future profit streams.
There were no other significant temporary differences
arising during the year or at the balance sheet date.

The Company had no significant temporary differences

arising during the year or at the balance sheet date.

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTION

As disclosed in note 14, 15,000,000 ordinary shares were
issued and allotted to MIHL or its nominees for the
acquisition of trade marks in last year at an issue price of
HK$1.47 per share.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At the balance sheet date, certain borrowings of the
Group were secured by the bank deposits of HK$799,000
and the factory building with net book value of
HK$15,324,000 (2006: bank deposit of HK$4,236,000).

31.

32.

33.

15 FIE 75 18

REER ANEBRGB ZHIBEELD
234,896,000 7T (= T & X F
157,678,000/ 7t ) A] AR K 5 B 18 )%
e BT EEIEERALEE AN H
1% v A 2R 2 71 AT 7880 M - 37 £ LA IE
EEBREMRELEHRIEEE -F AR
HEBUWEEMEAERER.

el
pe

ARAFARRERE AL EENERKE
Ho

FEFRERNS

a0 B R 14FT 42 B8 - A 4F - 15,000,000
RERRE T REEE AR EEEE
HEREBAERBEREZRE B
BITER1.475 L.

EEEH

REZEB RNEBE2ETFTERARTE
5%799,000/% 7t & AR  {E15,324,000
BLZBE (ZEEXNF RAEK
4,236,000/ 70 ) {EK 3
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34. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

Retirement benefit scheme contributions

34. EAKRBAIETE
B AR R 5 B

88

2007 2006
—EBBtE —TTRE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTER FTET
Contributions to mandatory provident fund 58 1 N E 2 5T E
scheme (“MPF Scheme") ([BEEsE]) K 308 404
Contributions to PRC state-managed pension H XEBRNRE
schemes ek 2,210 804
Amount charged to consolidated income el am xR 2 R
statement 2,518 1,208

The Group ceased to operate the defined contribution
scheme which is registered under the Occupational
Retirement Scheme Ordinance. The assets of the scheme
are held separately from those of the Group in funds
under the control of independent trustee. The Group now
only participates in the MPF Scheme for all employees in
Hong Kong which is registered with the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme Authority under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. The assets of the
MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in funds under the control of an independent trustee.
Under the rules of the MPF Scheme, the employer and its
employees are each required to make contributions to
the Scheme at rate specified in the rules. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to MPF Scheme is
to make the required contributions under the Scheme.
No forfeited contribution is available to reduce the

contribution payable in the future years.
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RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES 34. RIRBERFE ()
(CONTINUED)
Retirement benefit scheme contributions (continued) RN B (F)
The eligible employees of the Company’s subsidiaries in RRBRRFPBEZHBRARIz & ERE
the PRC are members of pension schemes operated by BAPEM T BNEE RIKEFTEIZ
the Chinese local government. The subsidiaries are KE - ZEWBARIERRBZEREE 2
required to contribute a certain percentage of the relevant BlFHERAZE—B D LRAZEKRE
cost of the payroll of these employees to the pension STERERENZER AEEEH
schemes to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the RIKENGFEI 2 E—BERELRTEZ
Group with respect to the retirement benefit scheme is a7
to make the specified contribution.
OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 35. MEMHNZH
The Group as lessee REBEREEA
At the balance sheet date, the Group had entered into REER AEBFIVETEAHEEE
certain non-cancellable operating leases in respect of W2 DAl HEH A R A0 - NE B BE 5%
rented premises. The future minimum lease payments ZFHAMERBEAEXNZFERAEZ
committed by the Group in respect of the leases fall due SATEAR
as follows:
THE GROUP
rEEHE
2007 2006
—EBtE _—TTRE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER TET
Within one year —FR 3,299 1,564
In the second to fifth year inclusive E_FERF
(BREREMEER) 3,229 110
6,528 1,674

Leases are negotiated for a term ranged from 2 to 3

years.

The Company had no significant operating lease
commitments at the balance sheet date.

BEEZENFMNTIRE=F"

ARARREE AW ELMEALLRLY
FRCHE o

2007 % #
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36.

B
For the year ended 31st March, 2007 HZE-_ZTZT+F=A=+—HIFE
CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 36. BEAREIE
THE GROUP
AEE
2007 2006
BTt —FTITF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
TER FHIT
Capital expenditure contracted for but not ERIHERR T B RE R
provided in the consolidated financial (E= YN ER T
statements in respect of acquisition of BEBRBECERRAX
property, plant and equipment 394 57

37.

Save as disclosed above, the Company has entered into
an agreement with a third party for the acquisition of
certain property interest in PRC for an aggregate
consideration of RMB2,026,000,000. Details are disclosed
in note 39.

The Company had no significant capital commitments at
the balance sheet date.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

THE GROUP

In 2004, Matsunichi Hi-Tech Limited (“MHT") received
summon from an independent third party (“ITP”). The
ITP claimed MHT was infringing and/or inducing
infringement of 5 patents of ITP (“ITP Patents”) in relation
to a product designed and manufactured by a supplier of
MHT (the “Supplier”). MHT is claimed by damages in an
amount of three times of an amount adequate to
compensate the ITP for MHT's infringement of the ITP
Patents, interest on the said damages and respective costs
and attorney’s costs. MHT had subsequently entered into
an indemnity agreement with the Supplier whereby the
Supplier agreed to indemnify MHT for all costs and
damages resulted from the claim. In addition, the directors
of the Company are of the view that the claim made by
the ITP is not substantiated. Accordingly, no provision is
therefore considered necessary in the financial statements.
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)
THE GROUP (continued)
The Group had no other significant contingent liabilities

at the balance sheet date.

THE COMPANY

At 31st March, 2006, the Company has provided a
guarantee to banks in respect of credit facilities of finance
leases granted to a subsidiary amounting to approximately
HK$664,000.

In addition, at 31st March, 2007, the Company provided
several unlimited guarantees, a HK$287,300,000 (2006:
HK$125,000,000) guarantee to certain banks in respect
of credit facilities granted to certain subsidiaries. The
aggregate amounts utilised by the subsidiaries at 31st
March, 2007 were HK$768,673,000 (2006:
HK$235,521,000).

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Save as disclosed in note 14, 20, 24 and 25 above, during
the year ended 31st March, 2006, the Group paid rental
charges HK$259,000 to Matsunichi Properties Holdings
(HK) Limited, a company in which Mr. Pan has a beneficial
interest. During the year ended 31st March, 2007, the
Group sold goods amounting to HK$348,000 (2006:
HK$3,740,000) to AR 8 £/8 5 A&, a company in
which Mr. Pan has a beneficial interest.

37.

38.

HAEE (F)

A EE ()
AEBERGEEADREBEARAE
N

R-ZEERNE=ZA=+—H ARARH
HY—EHBAR ZEEMERLYMMA
SRITIEH R BB X 5 664,000/ T °

oh RZEFEF=A=+—H &R
ApE THEB AR ZEEREmMME T
WITEDZEERER: —
287,300,000% 7T (= & & X F
125,000,000 7T) 2 &R - R =TT+
FZA=+—H ZEWEAREHH
2 BB 768,673,000 L (=T
Z 7N :235,521,0008 7T) ©

HEALRS

B _EXCHIRE14 ~ 20 ~ 24 25FR IR E AN
REBEE-_ZTENF=-A=1+—HILEFE
W AEBRRBESE (F8) ARAA
(HBELEBBES R AR) X
% F2259,000/8 T o b AN - A K B
B A H 348,000 L (ZEZE XN F:
3,740,000 7) 2 Em TR BELLE
DPRAR(BEBELERAESESZZAD
a]) e
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39.

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

On 15th February, 2007, the Company has entered into
an agreement with a third party for the acquisition of
certain property interests in the PRC for an aggregate
consideration of RMB2,026,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$2,046,260,000) through the acquiisition of two PRC
companies (the “Acquisition”). The completion of the
Acquisition is subject to the approval of the Company’s
shareholders and other conditions stated in the
agreement.

On 3rd April, 2007, a deposit of RMB200,000,000 was
made by the Company for the Acquisition.

On 22nd May, 2007, the Acquisition was duly passed by
the Company’s shareholders by way of poll at the
extraordinary general meeting held on the same date.

On 28th June, 2007, the Group made an announcement
for proposed new issues (“New Issues”) by way of (i) a
rights issue of shares at a subscription price of HK$4.5
per share (with warrants to subscribe for shares in the
proportion of three warrants for every ten rights shares
subscribed) for every two shares held on the date (“Record
Date”) by reference to which entitlements to the New
Issues, are determined and (ii) an open offer of convertible
bonds (“Convertible Bonds”) on the basis of one
convertible bond having a face value of HK$6 for every
two shares held on the Record Date on a non-
underwritten basis. The New Issues are subject to the
approval of the Company’s shareholders at the
extraordinary general meeting to be held on 6th August,
2007. The Convertible Bonds will carry interest at 7.5%
per annum and mature on the fifth anniversary of the
date of issue of the Convertible Bonds. New Shares will
be issued upon the exercise of the conversion rights under
the Convertible Bonds at HK$6 per share (“Conversion
Price”). The Conversion Price will be adjusted downwards
on the date falling 6 months from the date of issue of
the Convertible Bonds and every six months thereafter
with reference to the market price. Part of the proceeds
from the New Issues will be used to finance the
consideration of the Acquisition.

Annual Report 2007

39.

FHERAREE
RZEZTLF_A+HB EAREF
@R (B AR2,026,000,0007T (FHE R
2,046,260,000/ T) iEHEE & T+
MEZMRPERBAR ZRE—F
(TWE=EE]) B—F=ATUHE K
BEEAFANRRRRIE RZ R
BHAbER BT SR

R-ZZEZT+LEMA=H ARARIHMKE
FB Y [fiEe AR 200,000,000z

R-FETLHFRAA-_+-H WEERE
ERFBRITZRREIAE LEAR
ABRRABMES A EEA BB

RZZEZE+FRNAZ+N\B TEEHE
HAaf AEARERERNENEE
HikikBE s B ([REBH]) BFE
PR RS ) 2 B — IR AR D GE AT IR B
R TR A ) 3 = 1) AT REB R
ZRBREE) 2 BEETHE CERRK
BE) R(VRETARBEENRRES
(TAiES ) EESRCEBNE
FEMBBROEE-—MNEBEREEITL
AR ESFIFBHETAETZHETE
B ([FBTER]) -MBETEHRAFR
—EREFNAARNBBEITZERERIX
GLEARRBRRILESTSEE A&
PRAE 55 LA SE B.7.5% 5T 8 WA AT R iR
BEFHTAMERBFERAINH K
MR AR IRE I T 2 BT
FIAZR6ETT ([HAE]) BT8R
ERRN A RERESETE AL EA
EETHARBNEARMEETHE-
¥ 1T R IR Z B0 PSSR IR A R AR B A
WEEEARKEBzZES-



40.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FERBREWT

For the year ended 31st March, 2007 #HZZZZTtF=A=+—HILFE

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 40. EEMBE QRS

SUBSIDIARIES
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at ARBIZEEMBRARAIRZZEZTLEF=
31st March, 2007 are as follows: A=+—HBZFBWOT:

Place of Paid up issued/

incorporation/ registered Proportion of

registration/ ordinary equity interests

operation share capital held by the Company Principal activities
Name of subsidiary FMEAL #BRERT/ N
WELAREME EEHH A EERE FRkEESLE FEXH
Directly Indirectly
BE#E &%
Ample Field Investments Limited British Virgins US$10,000 100% - Investment holding
Islands/ 10,0003 7T and trading of
Hong Kong digital consumer
RERZ#ES/ products
B REERKER
YIEEEER
Best Concord Group Limited British Virgins US$1 100% - Investment holding
Islands/ 17T REERK
Hong Kong
RERUEE/
B
Matsunichi Digital (Macao Macau MOP500,000 - 100% Trading of digital
Commercial Offshore) Ltd. RS B #£500,0007C consumer products
EEYEHEER
Matsunichi Digital Technology PRC* RMB99,216,000 100% - Manufacture and
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. el AE#99,216,0007T trading of digital

MBEBHERIERAA

consumer products
SERBEEHR
HEEM

2007 % #
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GERBREM T

For the year ended 31st March, 2007 #HZZZZtF=A=+—HILFE

40. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

Place of

incorporation/
registration/

40. FEMWB A TFE ()

Paid up issued/
registered
ordinary

Proportion of
equity interests

operation share capital held by the Company Principal activities
Name of subsidiary FMEAL #BRERT/ N
i) PNCIE=E EEME EUEERELIEN FERERSL TEER
Directly Indirectly
BE#E i &
Matsunichi Digital Technology Taiwan NT10,000,000 100% - Manufacturing and
Limited A& #4%10,000,0007T trading of digital
consumer products
EREBEYE
HEEM
Matsunichi Hi-Tech Germany Germany Eur300,000 100% - Trading of digital
GmbH =E 300,000 2 consumer products
EEYBHEER
Matsunichi Hi-Tech Limited Hong Kong HK100 100% = Trading of digital
NERSEYEL NG B 1007 7T consumer products
EEYBHEER
Matsunichi Information PRC* RMB164,796,974 - 100% Manufacture and
Technology (Shenzhen) R * A K% 164,796,9747C trading of digital
Co., Ltd. consumer products
MBEEERRCRI) ARAA RERBEEHHH
BEMm
Matsunichi Technology (Dalian) PRC* RMB59,945,220 100% - Manufacture and
Co., Ltd. R * AR #59,945,2207T trading of digital
MABHE (KE) BB AF consumer products
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40.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FERBREWT

For the year ended 31st March, 2007 #HZZZZTtF=A=+—HILFE

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

40. FEWE QT

=15 (&)

Place of
incorporation/
registration/

Paid up issued/
registered
ordinary

Proportion of
equity interests

operation share capital held by the Company Principal activities
Name of subsidiary FMEAL #BRERT/ N
i) PNCIE=E EEME ERUEERELIEN FEREESL TEER
Directly Indirectly
BE#E i &
Matsunichi Media Agency Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$100 100% = Provision of agency
MBERERAA B 10078 7T service
RERE RS
Matsunichi (Shenzhen) R&D PRC* RMB9,551,700 100% - Manufacture and
Centre Co., Ltd. R * AR 9,551,700 trading of digital
B BFERERE ORI consumer products
BRAA SEREBYE
HEEM
@ These companies were established in the PRC in the @ ZERBAINEBERERAER
form of wholly foreign-owned enterprise. il AvA

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities
subsisting at 31st March, 2007 or at any time
during the year.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the
Company which, in the opinion of the directors of
the Company, principally affected the results of
the year or formed a substantial portion of the
assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors,
result in particulars of excessive length.

R-BZBLF=A=+—H%&F
P fe] B ] > 25 PR /BB 8 ) 32 48 A
o] & 7% &

TARRBEZTZER  ERIEB
ARBZHBRARIAETEZER
KEARFEREAXGHEAEEE
ENELEZRAR -EFRARI
HEMHBARZHBEESRIE
BRITR.

2007 F % o5



Matsunichi

Communication

Holdings

Limited

Financial Summary

BB E
Year ended 31st March,
HE=B=1+-HLEE
2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
—EEBLFE Z—ZTERX —EEHE —TTNE —ZTT=F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FTHET TET TET TET
RESULTS ES
Turnover 4 3,070,579 2,313,706 1,703,752 613,059 438,381
Profit (loss) before taxation B R (FHE) 212,942 219,706 215,111 77,791 (1,525)
Taxation I (10,765) (4,654) (18,888) (7,653) (1,071)
Profit (loss) before minority Rt DB E A
interests wm A (EE) 202,177 215,052 196,223 70,138 (2,596)
Minority interests DR R - = - - 31
Profit (loss) for the year FERHM (BE) 202,177 215,052 196,223 70,138 (2,565)
At 31st March,
R=ZB=+—H
2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
—EEtE —TTRE -—ZTTHE "—ZTTWPE —ZTT=F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FET FET FET FET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Total assets EEHE 3,246,415 2,480,723 1,872,172 781,236 252,063
Total liabilities BERE (1,450,673)  (1,135,276) (683,550) (204,658) (106,229)
Total equity A 1,795,742 1,345,447 1,188,622 576,578 145,834
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